PA 11-242
HB6618

House

Public Health

Senate

7994-8039

1656-1657, 1675-1676, 1679-
1683, 1697-1708, 1837-1838,
1870-1873, 2041-2062

7119-7123

46

48

99



H-1115

CONNECTICUT
GENERAL ASSEMBLY
HOUSE

PROCEEDINGS
2011

VOL.54
PART 24
7913 - 8263



007994

tmj/jr/rgd/gbr 82
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES June 6, 2011

I just want to remind folks that as we come down
to the deadline here during the next couple of days
the machine won't be opened as long as we probably
have been doing. So we'd ask you to stay close to
the Chamber and be ready to vote when the time comes.

The Clerk will please call Calendar Number 343.
THE CLERK:

On page 46, Calendar 343, substitute for House

Bill Number 6618, AN ACT CONCERNING VARIOUS REVISIONS

TO PUBLIC HEALTH RELATED STATUTES, Favorable Report,
the Committee on Finance, Revenue and Bonding.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter, distinguished Chairwoman
of the Public Health Committee, Representative from
the 38th district.

REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you so much, Mr. Speaker. I move for
adoption of the Joint Committee's Favorable Report
and passage of the bill.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

The question is on adoption of the Joint
Committee's Favorable Report and passage of the bill.
Will you remark?

REP. RITTER (38th):
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Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, this still
is something of an annual event. It makes numerous
substantive and minor changes to the Department of
Public Health statutes and to programs.

Mr. Speaker, I move adoption.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. As I
indicated there are numerous changes in the bill and
there are a few more changes. Consequently, the
Clerk does have an amendment, LCO 8423. I would
request that the Clerk please call the amendment and
I be granted leave of the Chamber to summarize.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Will the Clerk please call LCO 8423 which will
be designated House Amendment Schedule "A."

THE CLERK:

LCO Number 8423, House "A," offered by

Representative E. Ritter and Senator Gerratana.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
The Representative seeks leave of the Chamber to

summarize the amendment. Is there objection to
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summarization? Is there objection? Hearing none,
Representative Ritter, you may summarize.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker,
this amendment offers a few more substantive and
minor changes to the Department of Public Health
statutes and programs. And in addition, it
incorporates several other bills that were heard by
the committee during this session. I move adoption.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

The question before the Chamber is on adoption
of House Amendment Schedule "A." Will you remark
further on the amendment? Will you remark on the
amendment? Representative Perillo.

REP. PERILLO (113th):

Mr. Speaker, thank you very much. I'm going to
have a number of questions on the amendment but I
will wait until the bill as amended. Having been a
part of the drafting of the amendment, quite frankly
I see nothing offensive and nothing that was inserted
into the bill that didn't have a public hearing. So
those sections I do have will wait.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, Representative.
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Will you remark further on the bill -- excuse

me, will you remark further on the amendment before
us? will you remark further on the amendment before
us?

If not, I will try your minds. All those in
favor signify by saying aye.
REPRESENTATIVES:

Aye.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Oﬁposed, nay. The ayes have it. The amendment

is adopted.

Will you remark further on the bill as amended?
Representative Ritter. )

REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. As I had
previously indicated, there are quite a few changes
that came both initially from the Department of
Public Health as well as the incorporation of quite a
few bills that were heard by the committee through
this legislative session.

I can provide the details on those bills as
needed by this Legislative body. Thank you, Mr.

Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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Thank you, Representative.

Representative Perillo of the 113th.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Mr. Speaker, thank you very much. If I could,
through you, a number of questions to the Chair of
the Public Health Committee.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Please proceed, sir.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. If we could dive in a
little bit into Sections 12 and 13 of the bill.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Sure.

REP. PERILLO (113th):

As I understand this refers to expedited partner
therapy. If the Chair of the Public Health Committee
could give a little bit of an example and description
of what that is it might be one of the areas of the
bill that might be a little bit more controversial.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.

REP. RITTER (38th):
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Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker, and I
appreciate the opportunity from Representative
Perillo.

There has been a fair amount of discussion on
this section. These sections, 12 and 13, indeed
allow what has been referred to as expedited partner
therapy. That is a practice allowing a prescribing
physician who has diagnosed a patient as having one
of two sexually transmitted disease, Chlamydia or
gonorrhea, to prescribe and dispense or order
dispensed oral antibiotics to the patient and/or the
patient's partner or partners. What this does is,

in effect, allow that practitioner to so prescribe

without physically examining that partner or

partners.

Mr. Speaker, over the last many years, but
increasingly, frequently, in recent years, we've
become aware of the rampant increase in the infection
rates due to both Chlamydia and gonorrhea, as well as
the difficulty of successfully treating a patient in
a way that does not literally invite reinfection.

And the point to this is to be able to provide
additional abilities. It will not stop reinfection

rates totally, but indeed, it's been shown in many

007999



008000
tmj/jr/rgd/gbr ' 88
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES June 6, 2011

other states where it's been adopted to have a
significant impact on -- in reducing those
reinfection rates.

As indicated, quite a few states have already
begun this. The Department of Public Healéh has also
made us aware of the fact that they have evidence
indicating that in Connecticut and Rhode Island, it's
quite recently common as -- actually as is the
current practice.

Mr. Speaker, I understand that it is a departure
in the respect that that partner will not have been
examined by the physician. I would point out that
the antibiotics to be used are antibiotics that
generally are administered in a single treatment and
are not of the type of drugs that one associates with
having a particular street value or use in any other
particular instance. Through you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, Representative.

Representative Perillo.

REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And again, through you,

one of the concerns about this, especially given the

fact that the physician will not have actually seen
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the patient and will not know the patient's medical
history including their allergies and the current
medications they do take, what consideration is given
to the risk of allergic reaction or improper
interaction between medications? Through you, sir.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I will answer that
question in two different ways. The first is that
the Department of Public Health does have a hot line
established -- 24/7 -- a hot line of the ability to
answer questions and appropriately counsel any
patients who have experienced what they may feel is
an allergic reaction. And that information will be
dispensed with the relevant prescription.

Information from the body of states that have
adopted this procedure over the past few years
indicates actually a very small incidence of those
kinds of reactions that Representative Perillo has
asked about to the particular medications that are
used to treat these two conditions. That doesn't not
mean it never happens. And I believe -- I'm doing

this from memory, Mr. Speaker -- I believe the
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number, like around -- in the single digits,

literally over the past few years of allergic
reaction has been reported, or at least I got from
the Department of Public Health.

The second part, excuse me, Mr. Speaker -- of
that question is -- Representative Perillo asked
about the perhaps inabilaity for the infection to be
completely treated by these medications, I would
point out only that the evidence shows as I've said a
decrease in reinfection rate of about five percent,
which is very encouraging. But also, the alternative
is an absence of this treatment. Obviously, that
will not have any effect at all. Thank you, Mr.
Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. One of the problems
we've experienced in medicine over the course of the
last decade or so is -- especially with antibiotics,
we've seen that resistance has gone down and
actually, the efficacy of the antibiotic slowly over
time has declined. We run the risk in this

circumstance of providing antibiotics to patients
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when they don't actually need them. And I'm
wondering what the impact would be to the decline of
the efficacy of the antibiotic, if we are perhaps
over prescribing in these instances. 1If I could ask
that question. Through you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I can provide some
information to Representative Perillo that might,
perhaps, be helpful in looking at this. And he is
right. There has been an ongoing realization of our
-- the ability of our resistance to be lessened and
many treatments to be not as effective.

However, in this particular program the actual
increase in antibiotic administration would be
relatively minor. For example, in the case of
Azithromycin, if it were successfully administered
for the partners of every single diagnosed case of
Chlamydia in the country, there would only be a five
percent increase in the use of that drug.

So while I'm saying that is a concern that is
not invalid, it is a concern we should always have

when talking about antibiotics, in this particular
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case it does not appear that this particular use
would significantly change that rise in resistant
strains.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Some interesting
statistics about these STDs and specifically
Chlamydia which seems to be the most rapidly growing
in terms of prevalence of the STDs before us. And
actually interestingly , there has been an increase
of about 60 percent among the population, ironically
of senior citizens. And I won't ask if the Chair
understands why that might be, but it's got to be an
awful awkward conversation, you know. Honey, I have
good news and I have bad news. The good news is you
don't have to go to the doctor. The bad news is, you
know, you might have Chlamydia. So not so hot.

So if we could move on to Section 17. as I
understand this section, it refers to child day care
services, specifically in the instance of when
they're provided by relatives in a home setting. I'm
wondering -- this refers to their need for licensure.

And I'm wondering is there any restrictions as to how
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many children can be seen -- or can be taken care of

in the daycare center and whether or ndét they do
indeed need to be family members? Through you, sir.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. One moment,
please. This is a large bill.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I would direct
Representative Perillo to line 500 in the underlying
bill where it speaks about the new language regarding
formal or informal arrangements among relatives in
their own homes.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker and I thank the Chair for
her answers to the questions.

Also in this section, there is a carve out for
retail settings, you know, in what is basically a
drop in type day care situation. And it specifically
requires that the parent or parents be in the retail
establishment in order for that to be allowable. But

I'm wondering if there are any provisions for who can
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work in that drop 1n day care center. Are there any
restrictions, is there a proper background check
required? Just to clarify, we want to make sure
there are proper safeguards in place. I'm wondering
if they are in place in this instance. Through you,
sir.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, the
specific instance which is drop in and retail
establishments are exempt from licensure.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Yes, thank you, Mr. Speaker. So no licensure is
required. That again is true of all employees. What
oversight is there, if any, over these drop in retail
establishments?

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):
Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And Representative

Perillo is talking about our current law today and
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that is the reason why in this particular statute
clarifies that the care that is provided in those
establishments is exempt from licensure if the
parents remain in the same store as the child.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

If we could move on to Sections 33 and 36 of the
bill which refers to reports of calls for emergency
medical services. As you know, this was established
a number of years back so that the Department of
Public Health could get a better handle on how many
ambulance calls were out there on an emergency basis,
on whether or not individual services were responding
to those calls. And now we are eliminating the
requirement for the report to be filed by individual
ambulance services.

I'm wondering if -- a, why is that happening and
b, if any steps are being taken by BPH to address
that? .

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.

REP. RITTER (38th):
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Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, this
section simply redirects that the report be made to
the emergency medical services advisory board rather
than to the Legislature.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I thank the Chair
of the Public Health Committee for her answer.

I have a number of questions on the rest, which
is the amendments. And I'm going to do my best as I
don't have all the line items identified. So let me
do what I can here.

Specifically in Section 505 at about line 322
and it refers to the transportation of cadavers to
Quinnipiac University. Currently we allow that to
UConn and also to Yale. I am wondering why we are
now including Quinnipiac University. Through you,
sir.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.

REP. RITTER (38th):
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Thank you, Mr. Speaker. That is to facilitate
their use at the new medical school that's being
established at that university.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 1Is there any sense as
to the time line for when Quinnipiac University is-:
going to actually put their medical school in place?
I do not believe they have done any sort of
application process. And this is more a point of
curiosity than anything else. 1I'm just wondering
what the game plan is. That could obviously
significantly impact access to physicians in the
state of Connecticut and may also place a burden on
our academic medical centers in order to accommodate
residency programs. Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. 1It's my understanding
that they are beginning to hire staff at Quinnipiac,
but I am also not aware of the exact projected start

date.

008009
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DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you. A fair answer. 1I'm not either.

Um, moving to Section 506, this is a -- the
section of the amendment that refers to acupuncture
and -- and -- and I believe refers to one specific
individual and their ability to become licensed in
the state of Connecticut. I'm wondering why we have
this specific carve out for one individual. It seems
odd that we would put into statute something that
applied to one individual. If the Chair could
explain.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And the Representative
is correct. 'This is for an individual circumstance
of an exceptionally qualified acupuncturist who
needed an adjustment made for the situation in order
to be able to become licensed in the state of
Connecticut.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Rep --

008010
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REP. RITTER (38th):

I will add that this -- excuse me, Mr. Speaker,
I apologize. This is a foreign trained acupuncturist
and -- as is sometimes the case.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And just to clarify.
And currently, foreign trained acupuncturists are not
allowed to practice here in the state of Connecticut
and this would make one exception for one individual,
is that correct?

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. That is correct.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.

REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, through you, Mr. Speaker. Why are we
not making this adjustment for all foreign trained
acupuncturists? Why just this one individual?
Through you, sir.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker, and that's a good
guestion from Representative Perillo. At this time,
there was not, I think, an adequate comfort level
with doing that. This particular individual is
exceptionally well qualified and is perhaps -- his
qualifications are at a higher level or at least it's
felt the opportunity was not appropriate to broaden
it in any way.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And that matches my
understanding as well. I believe in this case the
individual is well published and has many years of
experience and I think that would be appropriate.
Usually, I wouldn't be a fan of single exceptions but
in this case, it does seem appropriate.

If we can move to Section 514, I have one or two
questions on this section. .And it refers to what is
called telepharmacy. And you know, typically, in
hospital settings, a pharmacist is a pharmacist. And

the -- the filling and dispensing of prescription is
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overseen on sight by the pharmacist. But that is not
what telepharmacy is. 1If the Chair of the Public
Health Committee could explain a little bit about
what telepharmacy is, that might be helpful to the
Chamber.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, first I'd
like to make it clear that this establishes a pilot
program and to help a situation that is just recently
developed at Yale University concerning the ability
of Yale University Hospital to acquire sites in the
area that they would like to pilot allowing
electronic telepharmacy.

This -- the sites are sites that are used for
chemotherapy and the ability of the telepharmacy
system allows the pharmacist at Yale University
Hospital to be able to supervise electronically the
accurate filling and completion of the additives and
admixtures that are used to administer this
chemotherapy. There's a very highly detailed system
of checks and mandatory video observation as this

procedure is undertaken. And then, of course, final
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checks also at the bedside prior to administration --
or at the chair side it turns out -- prior to
administration also are monitored throughout this
system.

The Department of Public Health and the
Department of Consumer Protection are anticipated to
be heavily involved in this and I think anxiously
interested in observing the progress of this pilot.
Through you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I would agree that
in this case particularly with the fact that there
are nine new centers around the Yale area it would be
appropriate and definitely a facility that's probably
well positioned to handle the pilot.

If we could move on to Sections 517 and 518, I
have a few questions. These sections refer to
acupuncture. And this is a very complex topic and I
have no intention of asking complex questions, but I
do just want to clarify a few thiggs.

As the section of the bill addressed the

definition of what we consider to be acupuncture in
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statute in the state of Connecticut, just quickly, is
this in any way shape or form an expansion of the
scope of what acupuncturists can and cannot do? Or
would it be characterized more as a clarification of
what an acupuncturist can do and if there could be a
little bit of detail, that would be helpful.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. And I think
it's fair to say it is both those things. Before I
explain that I would like to point out that this
particular provision results in a lot of work between
the acupuncturist, the medical society and various
other medical specialty groups to essentially put
together this both expansion and clarity to the
definition of the practice of acupuncturists in
Connectirut. It does expand the statutory definition
and that allows it to include the development of a
comprehensive treatment plan. What is many
specifically named -- excuse me -- functions as well
as other practices in the world of acupuncture that

must be recognized and accepted by the National



008016

tmj/jr/rgd/gbr 104
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES June 6, 2011

Certification Commission for Acupuncture and Oriental
Medicine.

Our statutes in the past, Mr. Speaker, were not
as —-- neither specifically detailed nor as
specifically comprehensive in addressing the
qualifications from that certification commission.
Thank you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I thank the chair
of the Public Health Committee for her answer.

As -- I just want to drill down a little bit
into the definitio; of what we consider to be an
acupuncturist. And specifically lines 802 to 807.
and if the Chamber will indulge me, I1'll read them
very, very briefly.

It includes the "promotion and maintenance of
normal function in the body's energetic and organ
systems and biochemical and metabolic and circulation
functions by recommendation of Oriental dietary
principles including the use of herbal and other
supplements, exercise and other self treatment

techniques, according to Oriental medicine theory."
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I just want to clarify primarily for legislative
intent, one could read this and perhaps thank that
this applies to sales people in a, you know, a
supplement store that sells vitamins, a place that
sells herbal and, you know, the -- the -- the things
you smell and they're supposed to make you feel
better -- I can't remember what they're called.

Is that the intent, you know, to lump all those
folks in and require them to be licensed or is it
simply, you know, sort of the traditional view of
what an acupuncturist is?

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. That is not the intent.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.

REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you and I appreciate that as I wanted to
clarify again.

I'm going to refer briefly to Sections 535 and
536 and I don't want to get into too much detail on

it, but this refers to a number of different issues
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regarding water and the purity of water. And
specifically, one section refers to well testing.

And you know, obviously any time you get into
situations like that it impacts builders, it impact
Realtors and can, you know, bring a significant cost
to home construction. Just to clarify, I'm hoping
that all parties involved in this -- all stakeholders
were involved in the formation of this language. And
so my question very simply is were folks from the
homebuilders community and from the Realtors
associations involved and were they able to weigh in
as to whether or not this would be significantly
onerous or was it something they could deal with?
Through you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And the short answer is
yes, there were extensive discussions with those
groups as well as others in putting this together.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.

REP. PERILLO (113th):
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Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And again, I thank the
Chair of the Public Health Committee for her answer.

I actually have one final question. It is in
relation to Section 537 and this, as I understand,
would allow funeral services to apply to the
Department of Public Health to open satellite
offices, essentially to conduct administrative
business. What exact type of administrative business
would that be at a funeral home satellite office?
Through you, sir.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, it's my
understanding those services mainly center around
funeral planning and perhaps the financial
arrangements. Through you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And through you, and
that could be in any sort of store front office, it
could be in any sort of shopping center. 1Is there

any sort of requirement as to size or location or
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anything like that? Just to clarify. Through you,
Mr. Speaker. |
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Through you, Mr. Speaker, no requirements of the
type the Representative has mentioned. But I would
like to point out that there must already be a
licensed funeral home in operation for this extension
to be granted.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

So it can't just be sort of a fly-by-night, I'm
going to open a store front and start talking to
people about their funeral planning. That's my
understanding and I appreciate that.

Just to clarify, we're not talking about, I
hope, we're not talking about situations whereby, you
know, we're going to be embalming and cremating
people in the West Farms Mall. Are those services
allowed in these sateéllite settings or are those
reserved specifically for the funeral home proper?

Is that correct?

008020
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DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP.. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And thankfully, Mr.
Speaker, those services will not be coming to the
West Farms Mall or any similar setting.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO (113th):

Coming to a mall near you.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker and I thank the kind lady
for her answers to my questions. I do think the bill
has been put together in much of a bipartisan manner.
I understand that there could be some aspects of it
that folks may be concerned about and may have some
more questions about. But I do support its passage
and I do want to thank the leadership of the Public
Health Committee, specifically Representative Ritter,
Representative Lyddy and those in the Senate who have
worked hard to make this happen as well as the staff
of the Department of Public Health. Thank you, Mr.

Speaker.

(Deputy Speaker Aresimowicz in the Chair.)
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DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Thank you, sir.

Representative Klarides of the 114th.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, through
you a few questions to the proponent.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Please proceed.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I know that the ranking
member of the Public Health Committee has asked some
questions on the section starting in line 360, but if

I could, to the Chairwoman, a few other questions.

And she may have said this already, but if she
did, I apologize. What is the policy reason for
-allowing the doctors to prescribe to the partners of
their patients? Through you.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. This comes from an

increasing level of frustration over our inability to
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control largely reinfection rates. These diseases
obviously a&e shared by both members of the
partnership and in the case where perhaps one has
treatment, it's increasingly frustrating I .think to
the community to see that person simply subject to
reinfection.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And through you, the
rate of reinfection that we're talking about, how do
we know that this policy that's contemplated in this
bill will help that? Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. The information from
the Department of Public Health tells me that there
have been at least four national studies that have
looked at specifically the reinfection rates from
this particular change and it's been shown to
increase the -- or I should say, decrease reinfection
rates by -—- I have here -- an amount of four to five

percent.
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DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And in lines -- in
lines 365, we talk about two particular infections.
Are those the only two communicable diseases that
this part of the bill will apply to? Through you.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.

REP. RITTER (38th):

Through you, Mr. Speaker. Yes, that is correct.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.

REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And how did we come to
only those two? Are there -- I mean, there are
others, how do we determine that these two are the
most important or the most dangerous or the most
necessary to cover? Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:
Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):
Thank you, Mr. Speaker. The Representative is

correct, there are indeed, other sexually transmitted
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diseases, however, these are the two that can be
treated in this manner. You might recall I referred
earlier to a single dose of antibiotics. Those other
diseases are not conducive to treatment in this
manner.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ: '

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I don't know the
answer to this, I presume that the Chairwoman has
done the research on it. One single dose does the
trick here with these infections? Through you.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.

REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. That would be the
recommended dose. That is correct.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.

REP. KLARIDES (11l4th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Um, so if somebody
comes in to the doctor and they -- and I presume it's
either their personal physician or a clinic. Does it

matter what kind of doctor they go to? Does it
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matter if it's a doctor that they've seen before that
knows their history or a doctor that they've just
gone to for the first time? Through you.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Through you, Mr. Speaker. It could be a
physician, a clinic personal physician or a new
physician.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

And this person says -- gets treated, I presume
the doctor obviously has to figure out that this is
the‘infection that they have and then all they have
to do is say, "I have had sexual relations with XYZ
and therefore I would like to get the single dose of
penicillin for them." 1Is that how it would work?
Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:
Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):
Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I would first like to

point out that that can only happen after an
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appropriate history and physical has been taken.
That is not affected by this bill in any way.

Secondly, it would not be penicillin but a -
similar antibiotic and for some of the reasons that
we've actually discussed earlier. But essentially,
the patient, if interested and willing to di§close
that information to the ?hysician, would be able to
obtain a prescription for that person.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I apologize, I
didn't hear that particular part. Why would it not
be penicillin and another antibiotic instead?
Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. These two diseases are
treated by several different antibiotics.
Azithromycin, known as Zmax, fluoroquinolone or known
as Cipro, cephalospdrin or doxycycline. Thank you,
Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:
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Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And when this person
goes into the doctor and they've had the appropriate
history taken and medical exam and they've come to
the conclusion that they are afflicted with one of
these two infections and they ask for an additional
dosage for another partner, would that partner be
limited to a human? Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Mr. Speaker, that would be up to the prescribing
physician.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I mean, I don't mean to
make light of this but I mean, we're being realistic
here, we've heard crazier stories. And quite
frankly, there are -- if somebody goes in there and
finds out they have this infection and they say
they'd like a prescription for somebody else, they

don't have to say -- I mean, that doctor doesn't know
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if it's a man or a woman or an animal or whatever it
is. So this doctor might be prescribing a medication
to somebody -- we know that the doctor doesn't know
who the person it or what the person is. It could be
prescribing to somebod§ that's not a human being.
Throﬁgh you.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, I would
first like to point out that this is permissive. And
it needs the situation -- it is incumbent upon the
prescribing physician to ask good questions and the
answers to those questions would -- may determine
whether that physician then chooses to write such a
prescription.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114£h):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. But it's permissive
then whether the doctor, first of all, has to do
this? 1Is that correct? I mean does the doctor have
to do this or that part is permissive also? Through

you.
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DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

The doctor does not have to do this, Mr.
Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And then once the
doctor determines that he or she chooses to do this,
they are not -- it is permissive what questions if
any the doctor may ask. Is that correct? Through
you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Mr. Speaker, the physician, as is currently and
always the case, may ask whatever questions the
physician feels is necessary to determine their next
course of action.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.

REP. KLARIDES (114th):

008030



008031

tmj/jr/rgd/gbr . 119
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES June 6, 2011

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. So when somebody is
diagnosed with this infection and somebody asks the
doctor for another dose, the doctor may not ask one
single question and will be diagnosing and
prescribing to a complete stranger is ﬁy
understanding of this. Which clearly, I have sat on
the Public Health Committee before and I do miss
sitting on the Public Health Committee. But I know
we had this before this year and so I've had
experience discussing it. And I do understand the
policy for this, I do. But I have grave concerns
with allowing as a state -- allowing a policy wherein
a complete stranger can get prescribed anything.

Through you, Mr. Speaker, do we know the
incidence of allergies to the type of medication that
could be prescribe through this? Because I know I'm
allergic to almost every antibiotic there is. And if
somebody came home and gave me something, I
personally would check to see what it was. But I
believe that part of the discussion here is a group
of people who may not necessarily have access to
health care and may not be as educated in regards to

allergies or what they should or shouldn't take or
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quite frankly, may not even know if they are allergic
to something.

So through you, Mr. Speaker, do we know what the
percentage of people that are allergic to these --
this possible group of antibiotics that can be
prescribed? Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker,
fortunately, there is quite a body of information on
the success of this system because Connecticut would
be joining 28 other states and one municipality in
the country that has been doing this.

Statistics from the state of California, which
also, like Connecticut, would maintain a 24 hour set,
7 days a week hot line, has indicated no calls to the
point that Representative Klarides is concerned
'about, that would be allergic reactions to these
particular medications. That does not mean it could
not happen. And the state of Connecticut is equally
prepared to maintain that service.

I would also like to point out to Representative

Klarides that in a circumstances like this we
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discussed earlier the ability of the physician to ask
appropriate questions and give the appropriate
warnings and that of course, would extend to the
granting of any additional prescriptions. Through
you, Mr. Speaker.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I thank the lady for
her answers. I -- as I mentioned before, I certainly
understand the public health purpose for this section
and I am honestly torn over this is something that we
should be doing as a public health policy.

I know for myself, I can tell you 30 people that
are allergic to penicillins or Cipro or any of the
number of medications that the woman has -- the
Chairwoman of the Public Health Committee has
mentioned. And I guess my concern is the five
percent increase in I believe the, um, reinfection,
what -- I'm sorry, Mr. Speaker, excuse me. I'm just
-- I'm forgetting that number. 1Is that what it was?
Through you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Ritter.
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REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. It is a five percent
decrease in reinfection rates.
DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Representative Klarides.
REP. KLARIDES (114th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I go the re- and the
decrease confused.

The five percent increase -- decrease in
reinfection rates, I would imagine there would have
to be at least a five percent -- five percent of the
population that would be allergic to one of those
antiﬁiotics and I don't have that answer, obviously.
But my concern very seriously is us as a state making
that the policy.

I understand the reinfection is a very serious
concern. Very serious, but I don't know if allowing
a doctor -- sight unseen to prescribe to a complete
stranger a medication, even with the hot 1line.
Because like we said, if the population that we are
looking to help here is a population that may not
necessarily be as aware or educated on what their own
allergies might be, then how could we feel

comfortable in somebody asking, "Okay, well, here's a
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medication, let me take the paper and call to see
what's going on and see if I might be allergic to it
or what might happen to me if I take it." So, Mr.
Speaker, although I do understand the policy reasons
for this, I have grave concerns with this being our
public policy for the state of Connecticut. Thank
you.

DEPUTY SPEAKER ARESIMOWICZ:

Thank you, Representative.

Will you remark further on the bill as amended?
Will you remark further on the bill as amended?
Representative Ritter.

REP. RITTER (38th):

Thank you so much, Mr. Speaker. And I want to
thank Representative Klarides for her concerns
because we've discussed these in the past. I would
like to offer as a fi -- what may or may not be a
final point to that and I had mentioned earlier, I
know when discussing this perhaps it might sound like
there is an opportunity suddenly for hundreds of
thousands of people to be given access to these
antibiotics whether they're aware of how they may
react to them or not. But earlier I did mention and

this is something that I think that if you take a
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minute to understand is helpful. That if indeed, if
the Azithromycin were successfully administered for
the partners of every diagnosed case of Chlamydia in
the entire country, that would represent but a five
percent increase in the usage of that drug. So I
think the -- there is some comfort and I hope, to
many people -- that the opportunities for issues and
complications are at least not that numerous. Thank

you, Mr. Speaker.

(Deputy Speaker Ryan in the Chair.)

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, Representative.

Representative Molgano of the 144th.
REP. MOLGANO (144th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Good afternoon to you,
sir.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Good aftgrnoon.
REP. MOLGANO (144th):

I have a couple questions to the proponent of
the bill, please.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
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Please proceed.
REP. MOLGANO (144th):

Thank you. Through you to Representative
Ritter, the section on the needle and syringe
exchange program, which I believe is number 14. I
see here that we do have measures to assist the
program participants as it says in obtaining drug
treatment services. And also that they're monitoring
members who participate to take advantage of this
program. And because they're doing monitoring
reporting, I'm concerned or have a question as to why
the section beginning on lines 455 and ending on 458,
where the Department shall compile information and
report to the Joint Standing Committees of cognizance
in our Assembly, why that is omitted at this point?
Through you, Mr. Speaker.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Representative Ritter.
REP. RITTER (38th):

One moment, Mr. Speaker.

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, that --
it's my understanding that that information will

continue to be available through the Department of
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Public Health's website, but it will not be reported
in the manner the Representative refers to.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
Thank you, Representative.
Representative Molgano.
REP. MOLGANO (144th):

Thank you, Mr. Speaker. And I thank the good
Representative for her answer. I did not know it was
going to be on the website, so I appreciate her
answer. Thank you very much.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

Thank you, sir.

Will you remark further on the bill as amended?
Will you remark further on the bill as amended?

If not, will staff and guests please come to
the Well of the House. Will the Members please take
your seats and the machine will be open.

THE CLERK:

The House of Representatives is voting by roll

call. Members to the Chamber. The House is voting

by roll call. Members to the Chamber, please.
DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:
Have all members voted? Have all members voted?

Will the members please check the board to determine
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if their vote is properly cast. If all members have
voted, the machine will be locked and the Clerk will
take a tally.

Will the Clerk please announce the tally.
THE CLERK:

House Bill 6618 as amended by House "A."

Total number voting 145
Necessary for passage 73
Those voting yea 134
Those voting nay 11
Those absent and not voting 6.

DEPUTY SPEAKER RYAN:

The Bill as amended is passed.

Are there any announcements of points of
personal privilege?

Representative Jutilla of the 37th.

Representative Mikutel of the 45th.

REP. MIKUTEL (45th):

Yes, thank you, Mr. Speaker. Mr. Speaker, I'd
like to inform the members of the Chamber of a great
victory by the UConn Men's Basketball Team. I don't
know if you follow it -- I said baseball team. They

are playing in the NCAA tournament and they beat

number one seed Clemson last night. That is the
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exchange. 1In fact, with regard to law, there
is nothing else with regard to federal health
care implementation. I mean, this is the --
the real thing. And that has to be done by
2014, not 2017; 2017 is a date for other --

other -- for other decisions with regard to the
exchange.
SustiNet is separate, related in some way -- in

-- in some ways in that we share values and we
share interests in many of the mechanisms that
are in SustiNet are part of federal health care
reform, which we're very interested in. And,
you know, the PCCM is -- is the mechanism
that's available to us. Medical home is a
mechanism that's available to us. All of these
delivery system innovations are available to us
through the federal money, and the savings is
through the federal -- through the federal
government .

SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you, very much.

Are there any other questions? If not, thank
you, so much --

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER JEANNETTE B. DeJESUS: Thank

you, so much.

SENATOR GERRATANA: -- for your testimony.

Let's see, also from DPH, we have Wendy
Furniss.

WENDY H. FURNISS: Good morning, Senator Gerratana,

Representative Ritter, and distinguished
members of the committee.

I'm Wendy Furniss. I'm a branch chief at the
Department of Public Health. 1I'd like to “b( ( !z
comment on two bills that are before you today,

Senate Bill 1184, the HEALTH CARE FACILITIES
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Bill, and House Bill 6618, revisions to public
health-related statutes. And as Representative
Ritter commented earlier, I have many subject
matter experts here who can answer any
questions that folks may have about specific
provisions.

Let me just highlight a couple of the
provisions in _Senate Bill 1184. This is a
health care facilities bill. The department
seeks to do a few things in this bill. One is
to ensure some consistency in our disciplinary
processes across different types of health care
institutions. For example, currently the
department is able to impose civil money
penalties against nursing homes but not against
other types of health care facilities. One of
the provisions of this bill would also allow us
to impose such civil money penalties against
hospitals, rest homes, and other types of
health care facilities.

In addition, the department would like to add a
disciplinary remedy to its tool box of
potential enforcement processes, and that is
one that we've used under federal regulation
for many years in terms of nursing homes. 1It's
called a "directed plan of correction." 1It's a
remedy that allows the department a graded
response to violations that have occurred in
health care facilities. 1If facilities, for
example, have a single but serious issue, a
directed plan of correction may help speed
compliance, prevent recurrence of the incident,
and allow an enforcement remedy to occur more
quickly than if we had to go through the whole
process of negotiating a consent order, for
example, with a facility. It simply allows the
department one more opportunity to use an
appropriate remedy to ensure speedy compliance
with regulations.
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been a particular issue that -- that brought
this about. We simply would like to be more
consistent across all of our provider types.
Other providers sometimes will complain, But
you occasionally fine us but you don't fine
them. So the -- the seeking, whether it's for
the fines or the other enforcement remedies or
licensing fees, it's simply for a more
consistent approach on the department's part to
all of our licensees.

And, again, I -- I can't reiterate enough times
that a fine is not in the department's view
always going to be the first choice. 1It's not
always the best remedy. But I do want to share
with you that both advocates, the media,
sometimes family members really, really like
the fines. 1It's something that everybody seems
to be able to understand. And the department
may be criticized sometimes for not levying
fines. Well, why didn't you slap a big fine on
them? As though that then would make some
people feel better. So I think there are --
there are pros and cons to that.

The department's full approach to enforcement
is I want to use the remedy that's most likely
to help the institution get back in compliance
and stay in compliance, not fall off the wagon
in two-or-three months when I'm gone but
continue that compliance throughout the year.

!
NARDELLO: And in your tech reviser's bill, you
have a couple of repealers. Can you discuss
what the repealers do?

WENDY H. FURNISS: I think that's the next bill. 1Is

REP.

it?

NARDELLO: I'm sorry. If I'm ahead of myself,
I apologize, been -- have the benefit of
reading this, so --

AARY
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WENDY H. FURNISS: You -- you are correct there.
REP. NARDELLO: Well, in --

WENDY H. FURNISS: They're in 6618.

REP. NARDELLO: So if you would just address them
when you address your testimony as --

WENDY H. FURNISS: Certainly.

REP. NARDELLO: -- to what they actually are, I'd
appreciate that.

Thank you.
WENDY H. FURNISS: Certainly.
Thank you.
REP. RITTER: Thank you, Representative.

Representative Ackert.

REP. ACKERT: Thank you, Madam Chair. I was just _EiElnggi;

reviewing and -- and I have issues with the
fees' portion of it under Section 4. Anytime
you have a fee, the end user ends up paying the
fee or the insurance company, in some way. And
I was just reviewing the numbers and it's -- it
varies. Assisted living --

WENDY H. FURNISS: Uh-huh.

REP. ACKERT: -- was $500. From zero to $500, they
pay nothing now; correct?

WENDY H. PFURNISS: Correct.

REP. ACKERT: Okay, and $300 for home health care
centers and in -- and in each additional
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-- this discussion could benefit by some
comparative information for us. And I know
that may be hard to get but we would appreciate
it. And just to make it easier for you, I
would hope that we could get that in a
relatively timely manner, since time is --

[

WENDY H. FURNISS: Yes.

REP. RITTER: -- an issue.

WENDY H. FURNISS: And we'll get that right back to
you. I know Karen and Jen are writing that
down.

REP. RITTER: Right. Thank you, very much.

And it's my understanding that you are here to
testify on a second bill; am I --

WENDY H. FURNISS: Yes.

REP. RITTER: -- correct?

WENDY H. FURNISS: Yes.

REP. RITTER: Thank you.

WENDY H. FURNISS: Thank you, Representative Ritter.
I'd also like to make just a few comments on
House Bill 6618, which is REVISIONS TO THE
PUBLIC HEALTH STATUTES, and then obviously you

all may have many questions about that bill.
We have the proper subject matter experts here.

First of all, we thank the committee for
raising this bill on behalf of the department.
We've attached to our testimony detailed
explanations of each section and ‘some -- also
some amendments that we would like to add to
this bill, other further technical language we
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would like to add.

Some of the highlights of House Bill 6618
include some changes to our day care and youth
camp licensing, to the electronic laboratory
reporting by laboratories which is assessed
with disease surveillance, and also to correct
some omissions that had occurred in prior
years' statutes. For example, Section 27, we
would like to add some language to correct
omissions in that no deadline was given for
filing a COM application. And somehow we
inadvertently overlooked adding podiatrist's
practices to that bill, so that they would be
exempt during a change of ownership in the same
way that physician-owned practices would be
exempt from the COM practice.

The department would also respectfully request
the committee to look at some of the additional
provisions that the department would like to
add, once of which, just as an example, deals
with licensed practical nurses. Last year,
language was passed to allow registered nurses
to accept the orders of podiatrists, physician
assistants, and optometrists, which I think is
really appropriate for their scope of
practices. Inadvertently, we did not include
licensed practical nurses in that language, and
we would like to do that. 1It's -- it's not
helpful to exclude LPNs from being able to
accept orders from those practitioners.

The department is also making some technical
changes to the Emergency Medical Services
Advisory Board, and as Representative Nardello
pointed out, there are some repealer sections
at the end. As I look at those, I believe most
of those are related to emergency medical
services, as well as a couple of other
programs.
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So I would -- I would like to ask Leonard
Guercia to come up and speak about the
emergency-medical-services piece, if I may do
that?

SENATOR GERRATANA: Yes, please.

KAREN-MARIE BUCKLEY-BATES: And perhaps before Lenny
comes up I can just speak to the differept
sections for Representative Nardello --

SENATOR GERRATANA: (Inaudible.)

KAREN-MARIE BUCKLEY-BATES: It's Karen Buckley Bates
from the Department of Public Health.

The -- the sections under Section 37 of the
bill, 19a-6i refers to a school-based health
center committee that meets and produces a
report annually. We have found that there's a
way for us to have those meetings with
contractors and cover the same issues. In
fact, we're actually having dual meetings. So
we decided it might be best to have that same
group come together only once and be
productive, rather than have the group come
together twice.

The next section is 19a-125, dealing with the
adolescent health council, which is an old
statute that has -- a group that has not been
meeting for quite some time, at least as long
as I've been at the department, and is believed
to be obsolete.

And then the final piece is 19a-77a, which is a
separate portion of the bill dealing with real
-- retail day care. It matches up to earlier
language in the bill.

I hope that's helpful. Thank you.
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LEONARD GUERCIA, JR.: And I'll just add that I'm
Leonard Guercia from the Office of Emergency
Medical Services, and I1'll be here to answer
any questions you might have about my sections.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Representative Perillo.
REP. PERILLO: Madam Chair, thank you.

Leonard, if you could just briefly walk us
threw what those changes are. I believe some
have to do with the EMS Advisory Board, if you
could just give us a quick-and-dirty on that.

LEONARD GUERCIA, JR.: Yes, sir. Last year when the
change was made and the five regional council
coordinators were brought into the department
as durational employees funded through the
Backwenell Trust Fund, there was a technical
glitch in the way the language was rewritten
which gave them a voting position on the EMS
Advisory Board, which I'm sure you're aware is
a volunteer board. It was felt by the chairman
of the board and the members of the board that
it created an inequity with so many department
staff having voting memberships. So this
correction makes that change.

REP. PERILLO: Thank you and, you know, practically
from policy perspective, making the change, not
making the change, does it really matter?

LEONARD GUERCIA, JR.: I think it -- it makes an
appropriate technical change to the statute.
Since those folks' positions end on
June 30th, and their future with the department
is up in the air right now, as you're well
aware, Representative Perillo, I think at least
get the statute in line so if they are able to
continue, there isn't a conflict as we move to
the summer. I can report to you that so for
there has not been an issue anywhere where
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there was a vote that involved the
coordinators, they were abstained on record,
and that's been noted in the minutes of those
meetings.

REP. PERILLO: Thank you, very much.
Thank you, Madam Chair.
SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you.

Are there -- are there any other questions? If
not, we thank you very much for your testimony.

At this point we will --
WENDY H. FURNISS: Thank you, very much.
SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you.

We will be alternating between Legislators,
agencies, and municipality testimony with the
public. So the next person to testify is Phil
Boyle.

PHIL BOYLE: Good morning. Thank you for having me.

My name is Phil Boyle. I am an independent
insurance agent. We have an agency out in
Plainville, Connecticut, and I am here today
representing the Connecticut Association of the
National Association of Health Insurance
Underwriters, also known as NAHU, and several
other insurance and brokers. Thank you for
your time.

And I have submitted written testimony but
wanted to just relay to you about the exchange.
I'm talking specifically about bill -- Raised
Bills, S.B. 1204. And so from the NAHU
perspective, we concur with Commissioner
DedJesus. We would like to see a successful
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So my question -- and this came up during some
of the discussion of this particular proposal,
Senate Bill 1204. So -- and when I read it, I

concluded that brokers were not permitted in --
to work on policies offered on the exchange.

Is that -- that is your understanding or is not
your understanding?

DAVID CAFRO: That's correct. Anybody appointed --
under 1204, anybody appointed to the -- to the
board cannot be an active agent, broker, own an
agency or anything associated with that. And
-- and I might add nor is it a funded position.

REP. RITTER: Good. Thank you. I appreciate that
clarity.

Are there any other questions from the
committee? Seeing none, thank you, very much.

DAVID CAFRO: Thank you.

REP. RITTER: Our next speaker will be Commissioner
Pat Rehmer, and she will be followed by Paul
Smith.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Good morning.

Representative Ritter and distinguished members
of the Public Health Committee, I'm
Commissioner Pat Rehmer of the Department of
Mental Health and Addiction Services, and I am
here this morning to speak in favor of Section
30 ofgépuse Bill 6618, AN ACT CONCERNING
VARIOUS REVISIONS TO PUBLIC HEALTH STATUTES.
And I want to thank the committee and the
Department of Public Health for adding this
language to their technical bill.

Section 30 would allow the Department of Public
Health to have policies and procedures in place
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to permit individuals with opiate dependence to
receive treatment in a variety of licensed,
substance abuse treatment facilities.

The bill is proposing the availability of
Suboxone or buprenorphine by prescription in
outpatient sSubstance abuse clinics. According
to DPH regulations, outpatient substance abuse
clinics are currently prohibited from
prescribing this particular medication, and
they're typically not licensed as ambulatory
detox or chemical maintenance facilities. So
those facilities are the only areas that can
prescribe these particular medications.

Suboxone has been approved by the federal
government; and, in fact, the federal
government is very much encouraging states to
use this medication in treatment of opiate
dependence in any setting, for a number of
years, as long as the prescribing physician is
appropriately certified. And we have many
physicians who have gone through the training
and are certified to prescribe this medication.

Until now, methadone clinics have been where
most individuals go for treatment of their
opiate addiction. And, again, these clinics
are required to be licensed in Connecticut by
the Department of Public Health as chemical
maintenance and ambulatory detox facilities.
By federal law, methadone clinics are only
allowed to dispense not prescribe Suboxone.
And very few of our methadone clinics actually
do this.

The availability of Suboxone to outpatient
substance abuse clinics would greatly expand
access to this highly effective and researched
medication and would provide another treatment
option for individuals who are suffering with
opiate dependence, whether it is to heroin or
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any numbers of prescriptive, addictive
painkillers. And this would also allow many
people to get this treatment with own -- within
their own communities.

Like any other medication, Suboxone would be
obtained at ‘a pharmacy with payment made by the
individual's health insurance plan, and this is
on the Medicaid formulary. Young adults or
young users, meaning individuals who have
opiate dependence that has not gone on for that
long, are really the primary target population
for this method of treatment, and it has been
found to be very effective.

And, again, as you might imagine, young adults,
in particular, but also young users who may be
professionals or -- are hesitant to go

to methadone clinics. And it's a daily dosage,
so you have to go every, single day. And so at
times that can interfere with your ability to
work.

So thank you for your time and attention. And
I appreciate your consideration of this bill.

And I'd be happy to answer any questions that
you have.

RITTER: Thank you, Commissioner.
Representative Abercrombie.
ABERCROMBIE: Thank you, Madam Chair.

Good morning, Commissioner.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Good morning.

REP.

ABERCROMBIE: 1It's nice to have you here.

How many methadone facilities do we-have in the
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state?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: About, oh, I would
say between -- I'm going to be really vague on
this, but I can get you --

REP. ABERCROMBIE: Okay.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: -- the detail. I
think between 10 and 20. And with the change
to the CON laws, we are seeing more facilities
come up. But one of the issues, and this just
happened recently, is that siting is very
difficult. Many towns have ordinances that
will not allow a methadone clinic to be in
their town, so that's become more of an issue.

REP. ABERCROMBIE: So with this expansion that
you're requesting under the state statutes, we
would be able to provide these services or get
these prescriptions in the local community.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.

REP. ABERCROMBIE: What is the process now for them
to be able to -- what will the process be for
them to be able to apply to be able to
prescribe this prescription?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: There are certain
regulations. For example, physicians can only
prescribe Suboxone for up to, I believe, it was
30 individuals but I think they've increased it
to a hundred. So they would have to -- and
they have to be trained and certified in
Suboxone treatment.

There are individual practitioners who do this
now in -- you can do it in primary care, which
we don't think is necessarily a good place to
have it done or you can do it through a private
practice. But the clinics can't do it, and the



64

March 23,

001701

2011

mhr PUBLIC HEALTH COMMITTEE 10:00 A.M.

clinics actually have the opportunity to
provide the psychosocial supports that are
needed for somebody who's trying to be treated
for opiate dependence. So there's -- they --
if they have a substance abuse license, the
clinic would not need to do anything else, if
this bill passes.

REP. ABERCROMBIE: Thank you. I -- I believe that
the time has come, with the epidemic that we're
having --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.

REP. ABERCROMBIE: -- with this in the state, for us
to be able to service these people in a more
efficient way. I do agree with you that most
people probably don't feel comfortable going to
a methadone facility for this.

So thank you; I appreciate it, and --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Thank you.

REP. ABERCROMBIE: -- I will definitely be
supporting this --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Thank you.

REP. ABERCROMBIE: -- part of the bill.

REP. RITTER: Thank you, Representative.
Representative Srinivasan.

REP. SRINIVASAN: Thank you, Madam Chair.
Thank you, very much, Commissioner.
So as I understand this, the -- the clinics are

already in existence. The physicians are
already there, trained and certified to be able
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to dispense this medication. And the cost of
this medication is going to be borne by
whatever the patient's insurance company is,
whether it be private or it be in the state or

federal. So the -- the holding back is -- is
that -- that they need a special statute to --
for allowing them to -- to do it in these

clinics compared to a private setting? That's
the part I could not get.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A: REHMER: Yes. The current
public health regulations restrict the
dispensing of Suboxone to methadone maintenance
clinics or ambulatory detox facilities. So
they have to have a separate license. They
have to be certified by the federal DEA. 1It's
not easy, frankly, to open a methadone clinic,
and, again, people don't like to go there.
This bill -- and -- and DPH is -- has been
working with us on changing the regulations,
but as you know, that takes often months to
years. This bill would allow us to enact this
much more rapidly. That's really what we're
looking for.

REP. SRINIVASAN: But in this bill, you -- they --
they would still have to apply for -- to get --
to be able to do this and go through that
process, please.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: No. No.

REP. SRINIVASAN: They would not --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: If their --

REP. SRINIVASAN: -- need that at all?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: No. If their
licensed as a substance abuse clinic --

REP. SRINIVASAN: Right.

001702
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COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: -- they would --
the docs, if they're certified --

REP. SRINIVASAN: Right.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: -- would be able
to prescribe this medication.

REP. SRINIVASAN: Right. So once -- once the --
once they're certified, they automatically
would -- that -- that particular facility would
be able to provide these services to -- to the
appropriate patients.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: That's correct.

REP. SRINIVASAN: Right. And did I understand you
correctly that these patients have to go daily
to the facility to get the medication, if I --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: If it's --
REP. SRINIVASAN: -- understood?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: If it's done, as
it currently is, through a few of our methadone
clinics, yes, they dispense. They cannot write
prescriptions for it, so they often require, at
least initially, that the individual come daily
to be dosed.

REP. SRINIVASAN: Okay.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: They can, over
time, decrease that and allow the person, I
believe take-homes. But it's -- it's really in
the beginning a daily dosing. They -- they do
it the same way they do methadone, and so
that's -- that's one of the issues with that.

REP. SRINIVASAN: Thank you.
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And if I can just have one follow-up question,
Madam Chair? Thank you.

Thank you, Commissioner.

The -- what would be the difference as it is
right now without us passing this bill, if we,
you know, between what happens in a private's
office setting where the physician isn't -- is
-- as you said, you know, you don't -- you
don't think that's the best way to do this, but
it is being done. So do they apply and get a
special permission; is that what happens for a
physician to do it in their private practice?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: They have to go

REP.

through the training and be certified.

SRINIVASAN: Right.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: And although it's

REP.

-- I'm -- I'm not opposed to that, and it is
one way to have it done. And some private
practices are doing it very effectively.
Because of the limitation on the number of
individuals that can treat, many of those
providers have -- they're at the limit. So
this would provide greater access for people.

SRINIVASAN: Right; very true.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Correct.

REP.

SRINIVASAN: And would there be any cost factor
attached to this, given the economic crisis we
are in at this particular point, to pass this?
You know, I don't see this. Do you see any
component there at all? Because these
physicians are already certified and they
continue their --
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COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.

REP. SRINIVASAN: -- and maintain their
certification anyway.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.
REP. SRINIVASAN: Right.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.
REP. SRINIVASAN: Okay. Thank you.

Thank you, Madam Chair.

10:00 A.M.

REP. RITTER: Further questions from the committee?

I have a question. Do you have an estimate of

the number of people potentially that could
benefit from this increased access?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: I don't know that,

Representative Ritter, but I could certainly
get it. And one of the things I can tell you

is that we've seen a fairly large and alarming

increase in the number of 18-to-24-year-olds

who usually start with prescription painkillers

and end up moving to heroin because it's
cheaper. And so we are seeing many more of
those individuals access our services for

detox, and then some of them go on to methadone

clinics. But, again, in that population, in

that age range, there is some resistance to
doing that, so this would help with.

REP. RITTER: Thank you. And, actually, you hit my
second point in answering that question. But I

think it would be of interest to see that.

And, also, a hard information on -- on that,

the -- that increase.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Yes, to be -sure.
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REP. RITTER: Because when we look at particularly
the -- the public health implications of that,
growing issues around abuse of prescription
painkillers, particularly, I think is a -- an
issue that more of us -- well, I can speak for
myself at least -- it's becoming much more
aware of in my district. And --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.
REP. RITTER: -- I think it --
COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Right.

REP. RITTER: -- is indeed a problem that we're
looking for -- looking for more tools.

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: But actually the
numbers recently in Connecticut have exceeded
the number of individuals using marijuana,
which used to be considered the sort of gateway
drug. And now we're seeing more individuals
who are entering the system with an addiction
to painkillers and use of painkillers at an
earlier age. So it is very troubling.

REP. RITTER: Thank you. That is a very interesting
point.

Normally in our daily discussion when people
use the term "a gateway drug," one might be led
to think they're referring to marijuana. So am
I correct from your statement that we might be
missing the point on the -- the gateway thing?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: This could be the
new gateway drug. And, obviously in many ways,
you know, the addiction aspect of it is much
higher.

REP. RITTER: Thank you.
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One last question: What about the -- any
particular issues from use of -- and I can't

even say it, Subox-whatever --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Suboxone? Sure.

REP.

RITTER: -- over time? How does that work out
for a patient or -- and -- and often, and
certainly in my area, one of the problems
siting methadone clinics is that, you know, one
form of reliance might be being replaced by
another one. Do you have anything you'd like
to talk to us about to that point?

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: You know,

REP.

initially the research on Suboxone was really
focussed on using it for young adults and not
in a maintenance mode but more in a detox and
keep them until they're stable and then take
them off it. What we have seen in the few
methadone clinics that are prescribing this is
that it is effective for young adults but it's
also effective, again, for individuals who may
have gotten, for example, addicted to
painkillers after some surgery. So they may be
older but the time that they've been using is
shorter. So it's, again, for young adults and
sort of young users or early stage users.

The other thing I would say is that in one
methadone clinic, in particular, that I know
that is dispensing this, we have not seen a lot
of individuals come off of the medication.

What I think we're beginning to see in the
research is that people may need to stay on
Suboxone longer than they've had in the past or
in what we've indicated in the research. So we
are seeing longer lengths of treatment with
Suboxone.

RITTER: Thank you.
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Is there any further -- any further questions
from the committee on this? No.

Thank you, very much, for your testimony --

COMMISSIONER PATRICIA A. REHMER: Thank you.

REP.

PAUL

RITTER: -- Commissioner.

And our next speaker will be Paul Smith, and he
will be followed by James McGaughey.

E. SMITH: Good morning.

p
My name is Paul Smith, and I am here to talk
about the Bill 1204. And I have -- we sent in
my prepared remarks, and my prepared remarks
touch a lot about the role of a broker.

So I'm an insurance broker, independent .
insurance broker in the State of Connecticut.

I have an office in Southington, where we have
five licensed producers, and we have three
licensed service people. And we've been

selling and servicing or I've been selling and
servicing health insurance in the State of
Connecticut for 38 years.

My testimony that I submitted wraps around,

again, the role of an agent, but I do want to

echo the comments that Commissioner DeJesus .
said. The bill is -- the idea of the exchange

is here for us and we're all in support of

that. Some of the things that the Commissioner
had said was they're talking about the

governance, and if you read my comments about -

- about the role of a broker, this is why I
believe that the role of the broker on the
governing board would be essential. We deal

every day with -- as previous speakers who have
spoke before me -- we deal every day with the ;
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individual worker, either exercising or waiving
her or his right to challenge the findings,
pursuant to the hearing procedure in 17a-101k;
thus, the language will cure the current
statute of its infirmities.

And I'm going to close there. You can -- I did
beat the clock -- you can ask me questions, if
you'd like. And my testimony is submitted to
you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you, so much.

LISA

Does anyone have any questions?
All right. Thank you for testifying.

LEVY: Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Take care.

JEAN

Next is a Jean Rexford.

REXFORD: Good afternoon, distinguished Chairs,
and committee members, and another person who
wants to beat the clock.

We're here in support of Senate Bill 1184, AN
ACT CONCERNING THE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES; and,
also, please support House Bill 6618, Section 1
of the Department of Public Health Bill.

The members of the Connecticut Center for
Patient Safety all across Connecticut are very
appreciative of the Public Health Committee's
ongoing work to present legislative proposals
that promote transparency and patient safety in
our health care systems. Senate Bill 1184 is
designed to help the Connecticut Department of
Public Health better and more efficiently issue
summary orders and impose penalties when
patients are at risk. Section 1 of House Bill
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6618 proposes to amend the law to allow the DPH

and any health care licensing boards to examine
a health care practitioner's negative,
disciplinary, malpractice conduct in their
jurisdiction.

There's a reason that this is in front of you,
and that is a very awful case of a Fairfield
County physician who was accused of soliciting
sex with a 15-year-old male in New York State,
immediately lost his license in New York and
has yet to lose his license in Connecticut.
This was in 2008, that this happened. I -- if
you ever. have time, if you go to the Department
of Public Health web site and try and
negotiate, as a consumer, how to find
information, it is very, very difficult.

Members of this committee, please authorize the
DPH to act as provided in these acts. 1In
addition, please over the summer bring together
representatives of the medical examining
boards, the Department of Public Health, and
most importantly, knowledgeable consumers to
begin to have a discussion on how best to serve
the public.

I -- I've been in front of this committee
several times this year, and I feel as if we're
talking about Band-Aids. And I do think if
we're all at the table, we could make some
progress.

Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: On time; thank you, very much.

Any questions?

JEAN REXFORD: No?

SENATOR GERRATANA: If not, thank you for your
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the committee, is the effort to do some
planning and to gather lists of and identify
high-quality future water sources. That --
that has been identified as an important step
for a number of years.

I have to tell you to the extent that DPH has
done it, the results are not available to the
public; they are protected under Homeland
Security. I was just at a Freedom of
Information hearing yesterday. DPH worked very
hard. They had prepared a list of future
sources. It took eight or nine months
following the process for them to give me about
half the items on the list. The other half,
the water utility said that they felt it would
not be appropriate to release the information.

So I ask you to add, I think it's around line
-- well, I ask you to add in that section a --
a stipulation that data gathers in this effort

be made available to the public, otherwise the
purpose of the work is frustrated.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you, very much, for that,
Margaret. We appreciate it.

No questions?

MARGARET MINER: Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: You're welcome. Thank you.
Next is John Murphy. No John Murphy?

Okay, let's see. Then Abby -- Abby Marks
Beale, Homeopathy for Connecticut.

ABBY MARKS BEALE: Senator Gerratana, Representative jﬁﬂgﬂﬁata_
Ritter, and members of the Public Health
Committee, my name is Abby Beale.
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I'm here today representing Homeopathy for
Connecticut. 1It's a group of individuals

committed to improving access to homeopathy by
affecting change in the law to allow nationally
certified homeopaths the ability to practice in
Connecticut. The purpose of my testimony is to
request to include recognition  of nationally
certified homeopaths as part of Raised Bill,

6618, AN ACT CONCERNING VARIOUS REVISIONS TO

PUBLIC HEALTH RELATED STATUTES.

The practice of -- practice of homeopathy is
currently restricted to medical doctors in
Connecticut. This is because of a law that was
passed back in '1893, over 118 years ago. Ours
is only one of three states that require a
medical license to practice homeopathy. In
contrast, the vast majority of homeopaths in
the other 47 states are independent
practitioners in their own right, many of whom
are not certified and are not medical
physicians.

Homeopathic remedies are sold legally over the
counter and anyone is free to purchase them for
self-care at home. All we want to do is have
the ability to provide specific guidance to
assist those interested in choosing the most
appropriate remedy for themselves. Currently,
there are only ten licensed homeopathic medical
doctors in Connecticut, of which several are
close to retirement age. Most practice
homeopathy on a very limited basis, if at all.
As a result, consumer access to homeopathic
care is almost nonexistent here in Connecticut.

A homeopath prescribes homeopathic remedies.
That's all a homeopath does. Unlike a medical
doctor, a homeopath does not diagnose disease,
administer or dispense legend drugs or
controlled substances, engage in surgery or any
practices that invade the human body. What we
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are asking is to allow nationally certified,
professional homeopaths, those who have
successfully passed the rigorous national
certification exam and earned the designation
of Certified Classical Homeopath, or called
"CCH," the ability to practice in Connecticut.

I've submitted a comprehensive list of
requirements for certification in my written
statements and will be happy to go over these
with you in more detail. The national Council
for Homeopathic Certification, who examines and
certifies homeopaths, has graciously offered to
verify certification and achievements -- may I
finish? I have one more paragraph; thank you -
- and achievement of annual continuing
education requirements for the State of
Connecticut, making this a no-cost proposal for
the state. We've included a copy of their
letter with our written testimony.

And I appreciate this opportunity to testify
today and would be happy to answer any
questions that you might have.

Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you, very much.

Any questions? No.

Okay, thanks for coming.

ABBY MARKS BEALE: Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Mag Morelli. Oh, goodness.

MARGARET K. MORELLI: Thank you, Senator Gerratana,

Representative Ritter, members of the
committee. I'll be very brief.

I just -- my name is Mag Morelli. I'm the
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March 23, 2011
PUBLIC HEALTH COMMITTEE 10:00 A.M.

President of the Connecticut Association of
Not -for-profit Providers for the Aging or
CANPFA. CANPFA submitted testimony on several
bills today, and our chairman was up testified
earlier today, on 1185. But I just wanted to
draw your attention to our testimony on House
Bill 6618 and explain to you what that

testimony is.

Last year, CANPFA worked with the committee and
with the Department of Public Health to review
the Public Health Code related to skilled
nursing facilities and -- and we identified
several -- maybe six or seven areas in the
Public Health Code that we thought could --
could be amended to reduce cost for nursing
homes without any effect or compromising of
resident care. Well, this year we've done the
same thing with the residential care home
section of the Public Health Code. We've
already worked with the Department of Public
Health and they've approved the changes that
we've suggested including two that are -- are
specific to residential care homes that are
actually connected to other segments of the
continuum on the campus. And we've submitted
those in our testimony to 6618, and I just
wanted to draw your attention to that. We
thought this would be the appropriate bill that
they might fit into.

Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you, Mag.

Any questions? No.

MARGARET K. MORELLI: Thank you.

SENATOR GERRATANA: Thank you.

John Murphy? (Inaudible) weeks.
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HAVEN

HEALTH ASSISTANCE INTERVENTION EDUCATION NETWORK

Legislative Testimony
Public Health Committee
Raised Bill No. 6618:
An Act Concerning Various Revisions to Public Health Related Statutes

Senator Gerratana, Representative Ritter, Senator Slossberg, Representative Lyddy,
Senator Welch, Representative Perillo and members of the Public Health Committee, my
name is Maureen Sullivan Dinnan. I am the executive director of the Health Assistance
interVention Education Network for Connecticut Health Professionals, which was created
in 2007 following the passage of Connecticut General Statute Section 19a-12a. HAVEN
is the assistance program for healthcare professionals facing the challenges of physical
illness, mental illness, chemical dependence, or emotional disorder. I thank you for the
opportunity to present this written testimony requesting clarification of sections 3, 4, and
5 of Bill N0.6618, An Act Concerning Various Revisions to Public Health Related
Statutes.

HAVEN supports the concepts raised in sections 3, 4, and 5 of Bill No. 6618. Concerns
regarding language have been discussed with the Department of Public Health and we

‘ understand that the Department has submitted revised language. The following sets forth
HAVEN’s understanding of the revised language with language to be deleted in brackets
and new language underscored.

Revised Language Section 3:

Sec. 3. Subsection (a) of section 19a-12a of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2011):

(2) As used in this section, [and] section 19a-12b [and section 4 of this act]:

(3) "Health care professionals" includes any person licensed or who holds a permit
pursuant to chapter 368v, 370, 372, 373, 375, 375a, 376, 376a, 376b, 376¢, 377, 378, 379,
379a, 380, 381, 381a, 383, 3834, 383b, 383c, 384, 384a, 384b, 384c, 384d, 385, 398 or

399 [and any institution licensed pursuant to chag' ter 368v];

Comments: The proposed bill attempts to add nursing home administrators to the list of
healthcare professionals who may access confidential assistance and monitoring pursuant
to Conn. Gen. Stat. Sec. 19a-12a. As the language was initially proposed, a health care

835 West Queen Street, 2™ floor, Southington, CT 06489
Tel. (860) 276-9196 and Confidential Fax (860) 276-9202

. www.haven-ct.org
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professional would be the institution, which would not be subject to assistance. This
interpretation was not intended. The more accurate language defines health care
professional as including any person licensed or who holds a permit pursuant to chapter
368v, which would include nursing home administrators.

Revised Language Section 4:

Sec. 4. Subsection (j) of section 19a-12a of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2011):

() [(1)] Any [physician] health care professional, institution licensed in accordance
with chapter 368v or state or local professional society or organization of health care

professionals that refers a [physician] health care professional for intervention to the
assistance program shall be deemed to have satisfied the obligations imposed on the
person or organization pursuant to subsection (a) of section 20-12e, subsection (a) of
section 20-13d, and Section 5 of this act, with respect to a [physician's] health care
professional’s inability to practice medicine with reasonable skill or safety due to
chemical dependency, emotional or behavioral disorder or physical or mental illness.

[(2) Any physician, physician assistant, hospital or state or local professional society or
organization of health care professionals that refers a physician assistant for intervention
to the assistance program shall be deemed to have satisfied the obligations imposed on
the person or organization pursuant to subsection (a) of section 20-12e, with respect to a
physician assistant's inability to practice with reasonable skill or safety due to chemical
dependency, emotional or behavioral disorder or physical or mental illness.]

Comments: Section 5 of Bill 6618 requires any hospital, institution or health care
professional with information that a health care professional may be unable to practice
with skill or safety due to physical illness, mental illness, chemical dependence, or
emotional disorder to file a petition with the Department of Public Health. This section
makes clear that the requirement to file a petition may be satisfied by referring the
professional to HAVEN as the assistance program recognized pursuant to Conn. Gen.
Stat. Sec. 19a-12a. At the current time, there is mandated reporting for physicians and
physician assistants under Conn. Gen. Stat. Sec. 20-12¢ and 20-13d. The proposed
language mirrors existing language. A referral to HAVEN currently satisfies the
mandated reporting requirement under existing subsections (j) (1) and (2). The initial
language of Bill 6618 inadvertently failed to recognize Section 5 of the Bill and
mistakenly attributed the mandated reporting requirement set forth in Conn. Gen. Stat.
Section 20-13d to all professionals, while using language limited to physicians. The
revised language more accurately reflects (1) mandated reporting applies to all health
care professionals, (2) a referral to HAVEN satisfies the requirement to file a petition
with the department, affording health care professionals confidential nondisciplinary
access to treatment and monitoring, and (3) properly sets forth the applicable statutes.

835 West Queen Street, 2" floor, Southington, CT 06489
Tel. (860) 276-9196 and Confidential Fax (860) 276-9202
www haven-ct.org
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Sec. 5. (NEW) (Effective October 1, 2011) [A] Any institution licensed in accordance
with chapter 368v or any health care professional as defined in Section 19a-12a, as
amended by this act, with information which appears to show that another health care
professional is or may be unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety due to (1)
physical illness or loss of motor skills, including, but not limited to, deterioration through
the aging process, (2) emotional disorder or mental illness, or (3) chemical dependency
shall, not later than thirty days after obtaining such information, file a petition with the
Department of Public Health. Such petition shall be filed on forms supplied by the
department, shall be signed and sworn to, and shall set forth in detail the matters
complained of.

Comment: As noted above, at the current time, there is mandated reporting for
physicians and physician assistants under Conn. Gen. Stat. Sec. 20-12¢ and 20-13d. The
proposed language mirrors the existing language regarding physicians and physician
assistants. Mandatory as opposed to permissive language is essential. As a confidential
alternative to public discipline is available to health care professionals, it follows that
mandated reporting should apply to those health care professionals. Under the current
system without mandated reporting, a professional, such as a nurse, who may suffer from
mental illness or chemical dependence is likely to be terminated from employment
without notification to the Department or a referral to HAVEN. Nurses with chemical
dependence may misuse substances at multiple facilities before coming to the attention of
the Drug Control Division of the Department of Consumer Protection or the Department
of Public Health. These nurses and other professionals do not timely access necessary
treatment or undergo the monitoring which is essential to professional health and patient
safety. Mandated reporting for all professionals lessens the likelihood that a professional
who suffers from an illness that may impair his or her practice will be allowed to resign
or be fired from a health care position and go to a new job where the employer or partners
are unaware of the concemns at the prior work place, and so, patients remain at risk.

I would like to thank the Committee for allowing me to submit testimony on behalf
of HAVEN, the health assistance program for Connecticut health professionals. Should
you have any questions, I would be happy to make myself available at your convenience.

Respectfully submitted:

Maureen Sullivan Dinnan, J.D.
Executive Director

835 West Queen Street, 2" floor, Southington, CT 06489
Tel. (860) 276-9196 and Confidential Fax (860) 276-9202
www.haven-ct.org
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CONNECTICUT
— AW HOsPITAL
mm Y ASSOCIATION

TESTIMONY OF
CONNECTICUT HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION
SUBMITTED TO THE
PUBLIC HEALTH COMMITTEE
Wednesday, March 23, 2011

HB 6618, An Act Concerning Various Revisions To Public Health
Related Statutes

The Connecticut Hospital Association (CHA) appreciates the opportunity to submit
testimony concerning HB 6618, An Act Concerning Various Revisions To Public
Health Related Statutes. CHA has concerns about two sections of the bill: Sections
2 and 5.

Section 2 discusses the patient care team parameters for patients on oxygen, as set
forth in general statutes Section 19a-903b, and includes a technical correction to the
title of a nuclear medical “technologist” (instead of “technician”). CHA fully supports
that technical change.

We suggest, however, that an additional revision to the patient care team
parameters in 19a-903b would better align the law with current practice in
hospitals. Specifically, with respect to the transport of patients on portable oxygen,
the law should be revised to expressly permit a person who is authorized by a
hospital to transport a patient with a portable oxygen source. This would be
accomplished by changing Section 2 of HB 6618 to state as follows:

Sec. 2. Section 19a-903b of the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2011):

A hospital, as defined in section 19a-490b, may designate any licensed
health care provider and any certified ultrasound or nuclear medicine
[technician] technologist to perform the following oxygen-related
patient care activities in a hospital: (1) Connecting or disconnecting
oxygen supply; (2) [transporting a portable oxygen source; (3)]
connecting, disconnecting or adjusting the mask, tubes and other
patient oxygen delivery apparatus; and [(4)] (3) adjusting the rate or
flow of oxygen consistent with a medical order. Any person authorized

Page 1 0of 2
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by a hospital may transport a patient with a portable oxygen source

‘ Such provider or technician may perform such activities only to the
extent permitted by hospital policies and procedures, including bylaws,
rules and regulations applicable to the medical staff. A hospital shall
document that each person designated to perform oxygen-related
patient care activities has been properly trained, either through such
person's professional education or through training provided by the
hospital. In addition, a hospital shall require that such person satisfy
annual competency testing. The provisions of this section shall not
apply to any type of ventilator, continuous positive airway pressure or
bi-level positive airway pressure units or any other noninvasive
positive pressure ventilation.

Section 5 of HB 6618 attempts to mandate that every licensed health care provider
report, under oath, concerns about the capability of all other health care providers
to the DPH. This section should be deleted in its entirety because it would
substantially interfere with numerous other existing rights, including due process
and peer review, and also because the language is too broad.

At a minimum, if you do not strike this section entirely, we strongly recommend that
it be made permissive, not mandatory, and include protections for existing law such
as peer review and credentialing, as indicated in the following revision (deleted
language appears with strikethrough, added language is underlined):

. Sec. 5. (NEW) (Effective October 1, 2011) A health care professional
with information which appears to show that another health care
professional is or may be unable to practice with reasonable skill and
safety due to (1) physical illness or loss of motor skills, including, but
not limited to, deterioration through the aging process, (2) emotional
disorder or mental illness, or (3) chemical dependency may-shaH, not
later than thirty days after obtaining such information, file a petition
with the Department of Public Health. Such petition shall be filed on
forms supplied by the department, shall be signed and sworn to, and
shall set forth in detail the matters complained of. Nothing herein shall

affect the protections set forth in section 19a-17b of the general
statutes, or any other statutory or common law that provides
s protection for reports to a public agency.
Thank you for your consideration of our position.

For additional information, contact CHA Government Relations at (203) 294-7310.

|DI:pae
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@ Planned Parenthood’

af Southern New England, inc.

Serving Connecticut & Rhode Island

Testimony of Planned Parenthood of Southern New England, Inc.

In Support of H.B. No. 6618 (RAISED) AN ACT CONCERNING VARIOUS REVISIONS
TO PUBLIC HEALTH RELATED STATUTES

Representative Ritter, Senator Gerratana and members of the committee, Planned
Parenthood of Southern New England would like to express its support for HB 6618. In
particular, our interest lies in Section 12 of this legislation, which would allow Expedited
Partner Therapy (EPT) in the case of any patient being treated for the sexually transmitted
diseases Chlamydia or gonorrhea.

It is critical in the prevention of the spread of sexually transmitted diseases that each
patient who receives treatment also convinces his or her sex partner to do likewise, in order
to avoid re-infection. According to the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) this
is a central component of prevention and control of bacterial sexually transmitted diseases
(STD), and a hallmark of sound public health practice.

The most common form of EPT is patient delivered partner therapy where the patient is
responsible for notifying his or her partner(s) and providing the actual treatment (usually in
pill form.) EPT has received public endorsements by the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention (CDC), the American Medical Association, the American Academy of Pediatrics
and the Society for Adolescent Medicine, following several CDC-sponsored studies that
found it led to substantial reductions in recurrent infections and, at the same time, saved
scarce public health resources. In Connecticut, EPT is supported by the Department of
Public Health, the CT Hospital Association and the CT State Medical Society. Expedited
partner therapy has been approved in 27 states and the City of Baltimore, MD. *

Chlamydia and gonorrhea are bacterial infections that can be cured with antibiotics.
Women often do not show symptoms of STDs; however, they can be at greater risk for
major complications. Untreated infections in women may lead to pelvic inflammatory
disease (PID) a serious infection that itself may lead to ectopic pregnancy, infertility and
chronic pain.t The CT Department of Public Health reports in 2009 there were 2,554 cases
of gonorrhea reported (58% of cases in women) and 12,136 cases of Chlamydia reported
(74% of cases in women).  Rates are heavily concentrated among young people. 71%
(8,617) of reported Chlamydia cases in CT in 2009 were among young people aged 10-24.
Left untreated, Chlamydia is a major contributor to infertility later in life. 57% (1,456) of
reported gonorrhea cases in CT in 2009 were among young people aged 10-24. v

The CDC estimates that there are approximately 19 million new STD infections each year,
which cost the U. S. healthcare system $16.4 billion annually. Moreover, 51% of gonorrhea
cases reported to the CT Department of Public Health in 2009 were among African-
Americans. That was 5 times higher than among whites. *
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The rate of gonorrhea among African American males was almost 7 times higher than
among white males. The rate of gonorrhea among African American females was more than
" 4 times higher than among white females.

Similarly, 34% of Chlamydia cases reported to the CT Department of Public Health in 2009
were among African-Americans. That was 2.5 times higher than among whites. ¥ The rate of
Chlamydia among African American males was more than 3 times higher than among white
males. The rate of Chlamydia among African American females was 2 times higher than
among white females. ¥

Screening and treatment of a patient’s partner is crucial not only to improving the partner’s
health, but to breaking the cycle of re-infection that is commonly seen among patients with
curable infections such as Chlamydia and gonorrhea. Recurring Chlamydia infections are
prevalent in young women ages 14-19, nearly 30% reported repeated infection through a 4
year study.” Allowing patients to deliver either the treatment or a written prescription to a
partner will, in situations where the partner would not seek independent treatment, help
such young women avoid prompt re-infection.

The relatively minor risk of possible adverse effects should not in itself preclude use of EPT.
v In states already offering EPT, hotlines have been established to report adverse reactions
to EPT (such as allergies), and no such reports have been made to date.

We appreciate the opportunity to offer support for this legislation and believe that, if
. approved, EPT could make a meaningful contribution to the decrease in STDs in our state.

! Center for DiseaseControl and Prevention http.//'www cdc gov/std/ept/legal/

:'IGuttmacher Institute http /www guttmacher org/pubs/F18 STI_US htmi
" State of CT Department of Public Health, Sexually Transmitted Diseases 2009 Surveillance Summary

" Yale Department of Epidemiclogy and Public Health (EPH) htip //opa vale edu/news/article aspx?id=1622
v Expedited Partner Therapy in the Management of Sexually Transmitted Diseases Final Report 2006
http /iwww cdc qov/stditreatment/EP TFinalReport2006 pdf
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March 23, 2011
TO: MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC HEALTH COMMITTEE
FROM: JEAN REXFORD for THE CT CENTER FOR PATIENT SAFETY

PLEASE SUPPORT HOUSE BILL 6618—AN ACT CONCERNING VARIOUS
REVISIONS TO PUBLIC HEALTH RELATED STATUTES (SECTION 1).

Section 1 of House Bill 6618 proposes to amend the law to allow the DPH and any health care licensing
boards to examine a health care practitioner’s negative disciplinary/malpractice conduct in other
jurisdictions and then use this negative conduct as a basis for imposing disciplinary sanctions against the
practitioner here in Connecticut. This is a very good proposal that stems from news stories in 2008-2010
when some physicians were allowed to practice here in Connecticut even though they had serious
disciplinary penalties previously imposed upon them in other jurisdictions.

In 2008, a Greenwich doctor was arrested in New York State for soliciting sex with a fifteen year old boy.
The Doctor’s license was revoked in New York, but could not be immediately revoked in Connecticut, as
it should have been.

On Monday of this week, I went to look up this particular Doctor’s profile on the DPH website (which is
required to be published pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes section 20-13j). First of all, the
challenge is to find the profile on the Website in the first place. Then, if you do find the right place on the
website and you click on “physician profile”, then you, as a consumer, would never know at first glance
that there is any sort of problem with this physician’s disciplinary history. You would have to take down
his license number, figure out how to do the search and then, two more clicks and you would learn that in
April two years ago, there was an interim consent order issued against this doctor, but as far as I can tell,
he still has his CT license, and may still be practicing.

Members of the committee, please authorize the DPH to act, as is provided for in HB 6616. In addition,
please over this coming summer, bring together representatives of the Medical Examining Boards, the
Department of Public Health, and most importantly knowledgeable consumers to sit down and try to
figure out how we can do a better job with the resources we have. Ranking 47" in the country in actions
taken against negligent medical practitioners is unacceptable.

THANK YOU FOR SUPPORTING PATIENT SAFETY IN CONNECTICUT.
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TESTIMONY
To the Public Health Committee
HB 6618: An Act Concerning Various Revisions to Public Health Related Statutes

March 23, 2011

Sena.tor Gerratana, Representative Ritter, and distinguished members of the Public
Health Committee, my name is Abby Beale. | am here today representing Homeopathy for
Connecticut, a group of individuals committed to improving access to homeopathy by affecting
a change in the law to allow nationally certified homeopaths to practice in Connecticut.

The purpose of my testimony is to request that you include recognition of nationally

certified homeopaths as part of Raised Bill 6618: An Act Concerning Various Revisions to Public

Health Related Statutes.

The practice of homeopathy is restricted in Connecticut. Ours is only one of three states
(the others being Arizona and Nevada) that require a license to practice homeopathy, and only
medical doctors may apply for this license. This is a result of a law enacted in 1893 — 118 years
ago! In contrast, the vast majority of homeopaths in the United States are independent

practitioners in their own right and are not medical doctors.

Although the practice of homeopathy is licensed in Connecticut, homeopathic remedies
are sold over the counter and anyone is free to purchase and use them for self-care at home.
Also, naturopathic physicians in Connecticut may prescribe homeopathic remedies as part of

their scope of practice but cannot call themselves homeopaths. -
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The issue here is that well trained and nationally certified professional homeopaths
cannot practice in Connecticut. This has limited the availability of homeopaths in the state.
Currently there are 10 licensed homeopathic medical doctors in the state and most practice
homeopathy on a limited basis, if at all. Consequently, consumer access to homeopathic care is

very restricted here in Connecticut — perhaps more than any other state.

It is important to note that homeopaths and doctors are two distinct professions with
very different educations and training requirements. Homeopathy is a discipline unto itself.
Regardless of whether a homeopath also has a degree in medicine, nursing, chiropractic,
acupuncture or anything else, @ homeopath prescribes homeopathic remedies, selected from the
law of similars. That is all a homeopath does. Unlike a medical doctor, a homeopath does not

diagnose diseases, administer or dispense legend drugs or controlled substances, engage in

surgery or any in practices that invade the human body by puncture of the skin, or set fractures.

What we are proposing is to allow nationally certified homeopaths the ability to practice
in Connecticut — these are individuals who have successfully passed the national certification

exam and earn the designation of Certified Classical Homeopath (CCH).

The national Council for Homeopathic Certification examines and certifies homeopaths
and has offered to verify certification and achievement of annual continuing education

requirements for the State of Connecticut, making this a no cost proposal for the State.

Certification is a rigorous process. To qualify as a nationally certified homeopath the
Council on Homeopathic Certification requires that a person have: (1) 500 hours of

homeopathic training, {2) college level courses in anatomy, physiology and pathology, (3) 250
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hours of clinical experience including 10 supervised cases; (4) passed the three-part national
certification exam; and (5) presented five cases taken without supervision. To maintain this
certification, practitioners must complete a minimum of 14 continuing education units each

calendar year.

Recognition of certified homeopaths assures the public of a high level of competence
among practitioners. It will also attract more qualified homeopaths to Connecticut and
improve consumer access. Allowing more homeopaths to practice in Connecticut allows
growth of a system of natural health care that is safe, effective and green and is recognized

throughout the world.

We offer the following statutory language be included in Raised Bill XX: ,

(4) “Certified Homeopath” means an individual who has successfully passed the requirements
and examination provided by the National Council for Homeopathic Certification.

(B) A Certified Homeopath may prescribe homeopathic remedies, selected from the law of
similars, excluding a legend drug or controlled substance. )

(C) The commissioner of public health shall obtain from the National Council for Homeopathic
Certification a listing of all state residents maintained on said organization’s registry of certified
homeopaths. The commissioner shall make such listing available for public inspection.

I appreciate the opportunity to testify today and would be happy to answer any
questions you might have at this time, or you may contact me at 203-530-3367 with any~ ’

questions.
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PMB 187 Toll free 1-866-490-4728

16915 SE 272™ St. Ste. #100 Fax 1-815-366-7622
Covington, WA 398042 www.homeopathicdirectory.com

March 2, 2010
Dear Ms. Wolf and Ms. Beale:

The CHC understands that a group of homeopaths and consumers are working together
in Connecticut to change the laws to allow the practice of homeopathy by highly
qualified homeopaths, specifically those with the CCH designation.

We understand that this model of certification relies on the Council for Homeopathic
Certification to set the prerequisite requirements for certification, administer the exam,
and communicate with the Connecticut Department of Public Health when needed to
verify certification in place of the State of Connecticut setting the standard for
professional homeopaths.

The CHC supports Ms. Beale's and Wolf's statement that the standards for the:
profession of homeopathy “are best set and maintained by the profession itself rather
than by state govemment.” As Ms. Beale and Ms. Wolf have noted “this approach has
two strong advantages. [t allows the standards of practice to evolve with the profession
and remain relevant. It also offers a model of regulation for the state that does not
require establishing a mechanism for setting standards and administering an exam.
Succeeding in this effort would be breaking new ground in the practice of homeopathy
in the United States.”

While the CHC is solely a certifying body, and does not engage in either PAC or
legislative issues, the CHC supports Ms. Beale and Wolf's efforts and proposal to
change the Connecticut state law to allow homeopaths who have achieved the
distinction of Certified Classical Homeopath (CCH) to fully practice homeopathy and call
themselves Homeopaths.

Sincerely,

Jacki Fox
Executive Director
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canpfa
The Connecticut Association of Not-for-profit Providers For the Aging

Testimony to the Public Health Committee
Regarding
House Bill 6618, An Act Concerning Various Revisions to the Public Health Related Statutes
Submitted by Mag Morelli, CANPFA President
March 23, 2011

Good afternoon Senator Gerratana, Representative Ritter and members of the Public Health
Committee. My name is Mag Morelli and | am the President of the Connecticut Association of Not-
for-profit Providers for the Aging (CANPFA), an association representing over 130 not-for-profit and
mission-driven providers of aging services including nursing homes, residential care homes,
housing for the elderly, continuing care retirement communities, adult day centers, home care and
assisted living agencies. CANPFA members are sponsored by religious, fratemal, community, and
governmental organizations that are committed to providing quality care and services to their

“residents and clients. On behalf of CANPFA, | would like to submit the following testimony

regarding House Bill 6618, An Act Concerning Various Revisions to the Public Health
Related Statutes

CANPFA would like to propose a list of suggested revisions and updates to the Public Heaith Code
as it relates to residential care homes. We submit these revisions as a means of potential cost
savings for the residential care homes without the risk of compromising resident care. CANPFA
worked with the Department of Public Health who reviewed and approved our requested changes
as we did last year when we worked with both the Department and this Committee to pass Public
Health Code revisions related to nursing homes.

Public Health Code, Chapter VI, Section 19-13-D6. Homes for the aged and rest homes
(pages 44-64)

Public Health Code - The following is a suggested list of public health code regulations that could
be revised or updated to save costs without compromising resident care:

Physical Plant Suggested Changes

Proposal to allow the sharing of dining and recreation areas when a residential care home
is part of a continuum (page 47, G.):

Suggested language: A residential care home that is collocated with a chronic and convalescent
nursing home, rest home with nursing supervision, managed residential community, continuing
care facility or senior housing may meet the requirements of section 19-13-D6 of the Connecticut
Public Health Code through use of shared dining and recreation rooms with such collocated
facility.

Proposal to reduce the Minimum Temperature from 75 degrees F to 71 degrees F (Page 51):
This would bring the residential care homes in line with the skilled nursing facilities which had their
minimum temperature requirement modified to 71 degrees F last session to align with the federal
standards.

Suggested language: A residential care home shall maintain all occupied areas at the minimum
temperature of seventy-one degrees Fahrenheit (71 degrees F).
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Administration Suggested Change

Proposal to remove the unnecessary personal mental and physical recertification by a
physician of the residential care home licensee (Page 55):

Suggested language: The provisions of section 19-13-D6(c)(3) of the Connecticut Public Health
Code requiring that the licensee of a residential care home supply a certificate of physical and
mental health signed by a physician with each initial and subsequent application is repealed.

Dietary Service Suggested Change

Substitute language to replace the unnecessary paperwork approval of meal and snack
schedules with a standard maximum time span between meals similar to the provisions
adopted last session for the skilled nursing facilities (Page 56):

Suggested language: The provisions of section 19-13-D6(f)(3) of the Connecticut Public Health
Code requiring Department of Public Health approval of the time scheduling of regular meals and
snacks in residential care homes is repealed. There shall be a maximum time span of 14 hours
between the evening meal and breakfast unless a substantial bedtime nourishment is offered.

Evening Attendants Suggested Change

Proposal to permit a residential care home that is part of a continuum to request permission
to share attendant personnel during the evening hours (page 57):

Suggested language: A residential care home that is collocated with a chronic and convalescent
nursing home or rest home with nursing supervision may seek permission from the Department of
Public Health to meet the requirements of section 19-13-D6(j) of the Connecticut Public Health
Code with respect to attendants in residence from 10 p.m. to 7 a.m. through use of shared
personnel.

Conforming Revisions to Public Health Code

The commissioner shall adopt regulations, in accordance with the provisions of chapter 54, to
amend section 19-13-D6 of the Connecticut Public Health Code to conform with the provisions of
this Act

Thank you for your consideration of this request. | would be happy to discuss these proposed
changes or any other questions or concerns.

Mag Morelli, President of CANPFA, mmorelli@canpfa.org, (860) 828-2903
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH AND ADDICTION SERVICES
A Healthcare Service Agency

Dannel P. Malloy Patricia A. Rehmer, MSN
Governor Commissioner

Testimony by Patricia Rehmer, MSN, Commissioner
Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services
Before the Public Health Committee
March 23, 2011

Good morning Sen.Gerratana, Rep. Rutter, and distinguished members of the Public Health Commuttee. 1 am
Commissioner Patricia Rehmer of the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services, and I am here this
morung to speak in favor of Section 30 of HB 6618, An Act Concerning Various Revisions to Public
Health Statutes. I want to thank the Committee for your assistance in raising this bill and to the Department
of Public Health for including this language in their tech bill.

Section 30 would allow DPH to have policies and procedures in place to permut individuals with opiate
dependence to receive treatment in a variety of licensed substance abuse treatment facilities. This bill is
proposing the availability of the medication Suboxone (also known as Buprenorphine), by prescnption, in
outpatient substance abuse clinics. According to the DPH regulations, outpatient substance abuse chinics are
currently prohibited from prescribing this particular medication as they are typically not also licensed as either
Ambulatory Detox or Chemical Maintenance facilities. Although DPH is in the process of re-writing their
regulation that would allow for the prescribing of Suboxone in licensed outpatient clinics, these regulations
could take many months to be finalized through the regulatory process. Suboxone has been approved by the
federal government for use in the treatment of opiate dependence in any setting for a number of years as long
as the prescribing physician is appropriately certified.

Up until now, methadone climics have been where most individuals go for treatment of their opiate addiction.
Again, these clinics are required to be licensed in CT by the Department of Public Health as Chemical
Maintenance and Ambulatory Detox Facilities. By federal law, methadone clinics are only allowed to
dispense, not prescribe, Suboxone and because of the expense, very few, if any of the CT methadone chinics
dispense Suboxone.

The availability of Suboxone through outpatient substance abuse climics would greatly expand access to this
highly effective and researched medication and would provide another treatment option for individuals
suffering with an opiate dependence, whether it is to heroin or to any number of addictive painkillers, within
therr own communities. Like any other medication, Suboxone would be obtained at any pharmacy with
payment made by the individual's health insurance plan, including Medicaid. Young adults who are struggling
with a short-term addiction to heroin or painkillers could go to an outpatient clinic for services in lieu of a
methadone clinic. '

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. I appreciate your consideration of this bill and would be
happy to answer any questions you may have at this time.

(AC 860)418-7000
410 Capitol Ave, 4™ Floor, P.O. Box 341431, Hartford, CT 06134
www.dmbhas state.ct.us
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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STATE OF CONNECTICUT

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH

TESTIMONY PRESENTED BEFORE THE PUBLIC HEALTH COMMITTEE
March 22, 2011

Wendy Fumiss, Health Care Systems Branch, (860) 509-7406
Ellen Blaschinski, Regulatory Services Branch, (860) 509-8171

House Bill 6618 - An Act Concerning Various Revisions to Public Health Related Statutes

The Department of Public Health supports House Bill 6618. The Department would like to thank the
Public Health Committee for raising the Department's bill.

Attached you will find a detailed explanation of each section included in this bill. Highlights include
changes to practitioner disciplinary statutes, day care and youth camp licensing, and electronic laboratory
reporting by laboratories. We have subject matter experts who can answer any questions you might have
for each section.

The Department respectfully requests the following amendments to this bill. Attached you will find a list of
suggested language for the amendment.

The Department supports the changes made In section 27 to correct omissions in the onginal statutory
language, however, no deadline was given for filing a Certificate of Need application and podiatrists were
inadvertently excluded from the outpatient surgical facility exception to the CON requirement for transfer
or change of ownership or control by specified licensed physicians. Attached language includes technical
changes for filing a Certificate of Need application and suggests adding a new section to make a
technical change to subsection (c) of section 19a-493(b) as the current language inexplicably excludes
podiatrists, who are licensed under Chapter 375 rather than section 20-13. The Department believes
that this was an oversight and that there was no intent to exclude podiatnsts from the benefit of this
section.

The Department also respectfully requests the Committee include additional provisions within this bill
conceming licensed practical nurses and the disciplinary statutes for several health professions, as
follows:

e The Department has drafted language to clanfy that under the direction of a registered nurse, a
licensed practical nurse may carry out the orders of a physician assistant, podiatrist or
optometnst. Similar language was passed during the 2010 session of the General Assembly for
registered nurses and should have been extended to licensed practical nurses.

« The Department also requests the Committee add a new section to include technical changes to
Subsection (b) of section 19a-178a which was revised in Public Act 10-118.

The Department also requests the Committee add a new section to include technical changes to
Subsection (b) of section 19a-178a which was revised in section 54 of Public Act 10-118

Thank you for your consideration of the Department's views on this bill. We are happy to answer any
questions you may have.

Phone. (860) 509-7269, Fax: (860} 509-7100
Telephone Device for the Deaf (860) 509-7191
410 Capitol Avenue - MS # 13GRE
P.0O. Box 340308 Hartford, CT 06134
An Equal Opportuntty Employer
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Amendments to HB 6618

Section 1. Section 19a-17 of the general statutes is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu
thereof (Effective October 1, 2011):

(a) Each board or commission established under chapters 369 to 376, inclusive, 378 to 381, inclusive,
and 383 to 388, inclusive, and the Department of Public Health with respect to professions under its
Jurisdiction that have no board or commission may take any of the following actions, singly or in
combination, based on conduct that occurred prior or subsequent to the issuance of a permit or a license
upon finding the existence of good cause:

(1) Revoke a practitioner's license or permit;

(2) Suspend a practitioner’s license or permit;

(3) Censure a practitioner or permittee;

(4) Issue a letter of reprimand to a practitioner or permittee;

(5) Place a practitioner or permittee on probationary status and require the practitioner or permittee to:

(A) Report regularly to such board, commission or department upon the matters which are the basis of
probation;

(B) Limit practice to those areas prescnibed by such board, commission or department;

(C) Continue or renew professional education until a satisfactory degree of skill has been attained in
those areas which are the basis for the probation;

(6) Assess a civil penalty of up to twenty-five thousand dollars;

(7) In those cases involving persons or entities licensed or certified pursuant to sections 20-341d, 20-435,
20-436, 20-437, 20-438, 20-475 and 20-476, require that restitution be made to an injured property
owner,; or

(8) Summarily take any action specified in this subsection against a practitioner's license or permit upon
receipt of proof that such practitioner has been:

(A) Found guilty or convicted as a result of an act which constitutes a felony under (i) the laws of this
state, (ii) federal law, or (iii) the laws of another jurisdiction and which, if committed within this state, would
have constituted a felony under the laws of this state; or

(B) Subject to disciplinary action similar to that specified in this subsection by a duly authonzed
professional agency of any state, the District of Columbia, a United States possession or territory or a
foreign junsdiction. The applicable board or commission, or the department shall promptly notify the
practitioner or permittee that his license or permit has been summarily acted upon pursuant to this
subsection and shall institute formal proceedings for revocation within ninety days after such notification.
[Such board or commission or the department may rely upon the findings and conclusions made by a
duly authorized professional disciplinary agency of any state, the Distnct of Columbia, a United States

possession or territory or foreign jurisdiction and shall not permit a collateral attack on the findings and
conclusions of such agency ]

(b) Such board or commission or the department may withdraw the probation If 1t finds that the
circumstances that required action have been remedied.
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(c) Such board or commiission or the department where appropriate may summarily suspend a
practitioner’s license or permit in advance of a final adjudication or dunng the appeals process if such
board or commission or the department finds that a practitioner or permittee represents a clear and
immediate danger to the public health and safety if he is allowed to continue to practice.

(d) In addition to the authority provided to the Department of Public Health in subsection (a) of this
section, the department may resolve any disciplinary action with respect to a practitioner's license or
permit in any profession by voluntary surrender or agreement not to renew or reinstate.

(e) Such board or commission or the department may reinstate a license that has been suspended or
revoked if, after a hearing, such board or commission or the department is satisfied that the practitioner or
permittee is able to practice with reasonable skill and safety to patients, customers or the public in
general. As a condition of reinstatement, the board or commission or the department may impose
disciplinary or corrective measures authorized under this section.

(f) Such board or commission or the department may take disciplinary action_against a practitioner's
license or permit as a result of the practitioner having been subject to disciplinary action similar to_an
action specified in subsection (a) by a duly authorized professional disciplinary agency of any state, the
District of Columbia, a United States possession or terntory, or a foreign jurisdiction. Such board or
commission or the department may rely upon the findings and conclusions made by said duly authorized

professional disciplinary agency of any state, the Distnct of Columbia, a United States possession or
territory or foreign jurisdiction and shall not permit a collateral attack on those findings and conclustons.

[(N] {a) As used in this section, the term "license” shall be deemed to include the following authorizations
relative to the practice of any profession listed in subsection (a) of this section: (1) Licensure by the
Department of Public Health; (2) certification by the Department of Public Heaith; and (3) certification by a
national certification body.

[(9)] (h) As used in this chapter, the term "permit” includes any authorization issued by the department to
allow the practice, limited or otherwise, of a profession which would otherwise require a license; and the
term "permittee” means any person who practices pursuant to a permit.

Sec. 3. Subsection (a) of section 19a-12a of the general statutes is repealed and the following is
substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2011):

(a) As used in this section[, [and]] section 19a-12b [and section 4 of this act]:

(1) "Chemical dependency” means abusive or excessive use of drugs, including alcohol, narcotics or
chemicals, that results in physical or psychological dependence;

(2) "Department” means the Department of Public Healith;

(3) "Health care professionals” includes any person licensed or who holds a permit pursuant to chapter
368v, 370, 372, 373, 375, 375a, 376, 3764, 376b, 376c, 377, 378, 379, 3793, 380, 381, 3814, 383, 3833,
383b, 383c, 384, 384a, 384b, 384c, 384d, 385, 398 or 399 [and any institution licensed pursuant to
chapter 368v];

(4) "Medical review committee” means any committee that reviews and monitors participation by health
care professionals in the assistance program, including a medical review committee described in section
19a-17b; and

(5) "Assistance program" means the program established pursuant to subsection (b) of this section to
provide education, prevention, intervention, referral assistance, rehabilitation or support services to health
care professionals who have a chemical dependency, emotional or behavioral disorder or physical or
mental illness.
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Sec. 4. Subsection (j) of section 19a-12a of the general statutes is repealed and the following is
substituted in lieu thereof (Effective October 1, 2011):

() (1) Any [physician, hospital] health care professional, institution licensed in accordance with chapter
368v or state or local professional society or organization of health care professionals that refers a

[physician] health care professional for intervention to the assistance program shall be deemed to have
satisfied the obligations imposed on the person or organization pursuant to subsection (a) of section 20-
13d , subsection (a) of section 20-12d and Section 5 of this act, with respect to a physician's inability to
practice medicine with reasonable skill or safety due to chemical dependency, emotional or behavioral
disorder or physical or mental illness.

(2) Any physician, physician assistant, hospital or state or local professionat society or organization of
health care professionals that refers a physician assistant for intervention to the assistance program shall
be deemed to have satisfied the obligations imposed on the person or organization pursuant to
subsection (a) of section 20-12e, with respect to a physician assistant's inability to practice with
reasonable skill or safety due to chemical dependency, emotional or behavioral disorder or physical or
mental iliness.

Sec. 5. (NEW) (Effective October 1, 2011) [A] Any institution licensed in accordance with chapter 368v or

any health care professional as defined in Section 19a-12a, as amended by this act, with information
which appears to show that another heaith care professional is or may be unable to practice with

reasonable skill and safety due to (1) physical illness or loss of motor skills, including, but not limited to,
detenoration through the aging process, (2) emotional disorder or mental iliness, or (3) chemical
dependency shall, not later than thirty days after obtaining such information, file a petition with the
Department of Public Health. Such petition shall be filed on forms supplied by the department, shall be
signed and swomn to, and shall set forth in detail the matters complained of.

New Sections to be added:

Subsection (c) of Section 20-87a of the general statutes is repealed and the following in
substituted in lieu thereof:

The practice of nursing by a licensed practical nurse is defined as the performing of selected tasks and
sharing of responsibility under the direction of a registered nurse or an advanced practice registered
nurse and within the framework of supportive and restorative care, health counseling and teaching, case
finding and referral, collaborating in the implementation of the total health care regimen and executing the
medical regimen under the direction of a licensed physician, physician assistant, podiatrist, optometrist or
dentist.

Add a new section making a technical fix to language in section 54 of public act 10-118:

Subsection (b) of section 19a-178a of the 2011 supplement to the general statutes is repealed and the
following is substituted in lieu thereof:

(b) The advisory board shall consist of forty-one members appointed in accordance with the provisions of
this subsection and shall include the Commissioner of Public Health and the department's emergency
medical services medical director, or their designees[, and each of the regional medical service
coordinators appointed pursuant to section 57 of this act.} The Governor shall appoint the following
members. One person from each of the regional emergency medical services councils; one person from
the Connecticut Association of Directors of Health; three persons from the Connecticut College of
Emergency Physicians; one person from the Connecticut Committee on Trauma of the American College
of Surgeons; one person from the Connecticut Medical Advisory Committee; one person from the
Emergency Department Nurses Association; one person from the Connecticut Association of Emergency
Medical Services Instructors; one person from the Connecticut Hospital Association; two persons
representing commercial ambulance providers; one person from the Connecticut Firefighters Association;
one person from the Connecticut Fire Chiefs Association; one person from the Connecticut Chiefs of
Police Association; one person from the Connecticut State Police; and one person from the Connecticut
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Commisston on Fire Prevention and Control. An additional eighteen members shall be appointed as
follows: Three by the president pro tempore of the Senate; three by the majority leader of the Senate; four
by the minority leader of the Senate; three by the speaker of the House of Representatives; two by the
majority leader of the House of Representatives and three by the minority leader of the House of
Representatives. The appointees shall include a person with experience in municipal ambulance
services; a person with experience in for-profit ambulance services; three persons with experience in
volunteer ambulance services; a paramedic; an emergency medical technician; an advanced emergency
medical technician, three consumers and four persons from state-wide organizations with interests in
emergency medical services as well as any other areas of expertise that may be deemed necessary for
the proper functioning of the advisory board.

The Department also proposes the following language change be made to Section 28 of the Bill.

Subsection (b) of section 19a-639a of the general statutes allows for the filing of a CON application no
later than 20 days after the.applicant publishes notice for three consecutive days in a newspaper of
substantial circulation in the area of the proposal. The statute does not, however, provide a deadline for
filing an application. Accordingly, it is possible that an applicant could wait up to a year or more to file a
CON application, thereby rendering the initial newspaper notice of the application ineffective. To provide a
definite time penod within which an application must be filed following the newspaper notice, we propose
the following change to the language in subsection (b) of Section 19a-639a:

(b) Not later than twenty days prior to the date that the applicant submits the certificate of need
application to the office, the applicant shall publish notice that an application is to be submitted to the
office in a newspaper having a substantial circulation in the area where the project is to be located. Such
notice shall be published for not less than three consecutive days and shall contain a brief descnption of
the nature of the project and the street address where the project is to be located. The certificate of need
application shall be filed no more than ninety days after the applicant has published notice in accordance
with the above. The office shall not accept the applicant's certificate of need application for filing unless
the application is accompanied by the application fee prescribed in subsection (a) of this section and
proof of compliance with the publication requirements prescribed in this subsection.

New section:
Subsection (c) of section 19a-493 (b) is repealed and the following is substituted in lieu thereof:

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, no outpatient surgical facility shall be required to
comply with section 19a-631, 19a-632, 19a-644, 19a-645, 19a-646, 19a-649, 19a-654 to 19a-660,
inclusive, 19a-662, 19a-664 to 19a-666, inclusive, 19a-669 to 19a-670a, inclusive, 19a-671, 19a-671a,
19a-672 to 19a-676, inclusive, 19a-678, or 19a-681 to 19a-683, inclusive. Each outpatient surgical facility
shall continue to be subject to the obligations and requirements applicable to such facility, including, but
not limited to, any applicable provision of this chapter and those provisions of chapter 368z not specified
in this subsection, except that a request for permission to undertake a transfer or change of ownership or
control shall not be required pursuant to subsection (a) of section 19a-638 if the Office of Health Care
Access division of the Department of Public Health determines that the following conditions are satisfied:
(1) Pnor to any such transfer or change of ownership or control, the outpatient surgical facility shall be
owned and controlled exclusively by persons licensed pursuant to section 20-13 and chapter 375, either
directly or through a limited liability company, formed pursuant to chapter 613, a corporation, formed
pursuant to chapters 601 and 602, or a limited liability partnership, formed pursuant to chapter 614, that is
exclusively owned by persons licensed pursuant to section 20-13 and chapter 375, or is under the interim
contro! of an estate executor or conservator pending transfer of an ownership interest or control to a
person licensed under section 20-13 and chapter 375, and (2) after any such transfer or change of
ownership or control, persons licensed pursuant to section 20-13 and chapter 375, a limited liability
company, formed pursuant to chapter 613, a corporation, formed pursuant to chapters 601 and 602, or a
limited liability partnership, formed pursuant to chapter 614, that is exclusively owned by persons licensed
pursuant to section 20-13 and _chapter 375, shall own and control no less than a sixty per cent interest in
the outpatient surgical facility.

.o
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House Bill 6618
etailed descniption of sections

Section 1 amends the disciplinary statutes for health practitioners to allow the Department and
boards/commissions to deem as true the findings of fact or conclusions of law embodied in the final,
written decisions of licensure disciplinary authorities of other states, thereby reducing the re-litigation of
issues in Connecticut that were already litigated and decided in another jurisdiction. The Department
respectfully requests the opportunity to submit amended language to clanfy that this provision should
apply in any disciplinary case, not only cases being brought for summary suspension.

Sections 2,29 and 31 are technical changes.

Sections 3 through 5§ amend the health professional assistance program statutes to include nursing home
administrators in the list of professions that may participate in a confidential program of rehabilitation.
These sections also establish mandatory reporting requirements for health professionals who are or may
be unable to practice with reasonable skill and safety. Currently, mandatory reporting is only required for
physicians and physician assistants. The Department respectfully requests the opportunity to submit
amended language to clarify that mandatory reporting obligations can be met through a referral to the
health professional assistance program.

Section 6 allows the Department to enter into negotiated agreements to restrict, suspend or otherwise
limit a license or permit during the pendency of an investigation without having to wait for
board/commission approval.

Sections 7 and 8 update the statute related to the Report of Foundling

Sections 9 and 10 Will require towns to report to the Department of Public Health, a newly elected or
appointed vital records registrar, as well as names of persons who have been appointed as assistant
registrars.

’ Section 11 revises the statute regarding access to birth certificates

Sections 12 and 13. Expedited partner therapy (EPT) is a treatment option for persons diagnosed with
chlamydia and gonorrhea in which the practitioner either dispenses the medication to the patient or
provides a prescription to be given to their sexual partners without the partners being seen by a
healthcare provider. EPT has been shown to increase treatment rates and decrease reinfection rates for
these sexually transmitted diseases. Given the high number of these infections, there are not enough
resources for the current traditional partner treatment strategies to adequately address this problem in
Connecticut. EPT would be an additional strategy available to providers that could get more partners
treated and prevent additional infections. Currently, 27 states and one large metropolitan area aliow the
practice of EPT.

Section 14 Clarifies the authority, and updates program and evaluation requirements of syringe
exchange programs in Connecticut.

nh Section 15 authonzes the Department, in consultation with the Board of Chiropractic Examiners, to
“.'._'. -f periodically designate certain topics that must be included in mandatory continuing education coursework.

Section 16 Establishes a Waiver Authorization by the Commissioner of Public Health under the
provisions of Section 10-204a(a) "“Required Immunizations mandates” in the event of widespread
unavailability of certain vaccines as a result of a national vaccine shortage. The waiver is needed to
prevent children from being excluded from enroliment in day care, school and colleges

Section 17 of this bill clarifies that child day care services provided by relatives, regardless of the
formality, is exempt from licensure. Also, this bill clarifies that care provided on a drop-in basis in retail
establishments is applicable provided the parents remain not only on the premises but in the same store
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Detailed description of sections

as the child. These changes are for clarification purposes and are consistent with the Department's
current implementation.

Section 18 of this bill seeks to increase the maximum civil penalty that may be imposed on those persons
who operate a youth camp without the required license for a first and subsequent offense. Currently, the
law limits the penalty that may be imposed to no more than five hundred dollars for the first offense and
no more than seven hundred dollars for a second or subsequent offense. This penalty is notably less
than the eight hundred and fifteen dollar application fee currently required to apply for a youth camp
license. This differential occurred when the application fee was substantially increased by Public Act 09-
03, while the allowance for penalties did not increase. Increasing the maximum penalty to one thousand
dollars will make it more in line with the application fee and will provide a greater disincentive to
individuals considenng operating illegally.

Sections 19 and 20 of this bill provide clanfication that a fee must accompany an initial licensure or
renewal application for a child day care license, such fee is considered part of the application and a
license cannot be renewed without the fee. Currently, individuals seeking to act as an assistant or
substitute in a family day care home must first obtain the approval by the Department of Public Health.
Approvai Is granted after an application has been submitted and it has been verified that ail requirements
have been met. Section 19 of this bill seeks to require a fee of twenty dollars to accompany the
application for family day care staff approval. This fee will help cover the cost for the processing of the
approval application and will provide consistency with other approvals and licenses granted by the
Department of Public Heaith.

Sections 23-26 In Connecticut, syndromic surveillance systems provided critical information that was
used to track the influenza pandemic in 2009 and guide public health control measures. We learned from
the pandemic that to provide a more complete picture of the impact of epidemics and other public health
emergencies, we need to expand and improve the Hospital Admissions Syndromic Surveillance System
(HASS) and the Hospital Emergency Department Syndromic Surveillance (HEDSS) system by mandating
electronic reporting of patient abstract data by hospitals for public heailth syndromic surveillance.

Section 24 Electronic Laboratory Reporting (ELR) is a secure, automated mechanism for the reporting of
laboratory and patient information by hospitals and commercial laboratories. DPH is nearing completion
of a new information technology system for public health surveillance that will include the ability to accept
electronic laboratory reports. ELR facilitates accurate and timely automated entry of laboratory and
patient information by hospitals and commercial laboratonies into this new system. Therefore, sudden
changes in disease trends may be more quickly identified than could otherwise occur with manual data
entry of paper laboratory reports received by mail. Legally mandating electronic laboratory reporting by
laboratones will assure the continuity of the laboratory reporting of diseases of public health importance.
In 2009, 8 states/jurisdictions have legislation specifically requiring or regulating ELR for ail or most
notifiable disease conditions, including New York City, New York State and Massachusetts.

Sections 27and 28 Makes a technical changes to the Office of Health Care Statute

Section 31 the licensing authority for Matemity Homes was transferred to the Department of Children and
Families in 2009 by Public Act 09-03. Consequently matemity home licerising fees are being deleted
from Connecticut General Statutes Section 19a-491.

Sections 33-36 are report repealers.
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SENATE June 8, 2011
Mr. Clerk.

THE CLERK:

Calendar page 23, Calendar Number 656, File

Number 544, substitute for House Bill 6618, AN ACT

CONCERNING VARIOUS REVISIONS TO PUBLIC HEALTH RELATED
STATUTES, as amended by House Amendment Schedule "A";
Favorable Report of Committee on Public Health,
Planning and Development, and Finance, Revenue and
Bonding.
THE CHAIR:

Senator Gerratana.
SENATOR GERRATANA:

Thank you, Madam President.

Madam President, I move acceptance of the Joint
Committee's Favorable Report and passage of the bill,
in concurrence with the House.

THE CHAIR:

The motion is on approval of the bill.

Would you remark further, ma'am?
SENATOR GERRATANA:

Yes. Thank you, Madam President.

The bill before us, an act concerning various
revisions to the public health-related statutes is

just that. There are a variety of sections in here
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that do make technical and other changes to the

Department of Health and related statutes.
Thank you, Madam President.

THE CHAIR:

Thank you.

Will you remark?

Senator Welch.

SENATOR WELCH:

Thank you, Madam President.

I rise in supéort of this bill.

I know this bill is consentable, but we do need
to vote it out. I'd encourage my colleagues to
quickly vote it out.

Thank you, Madam President.

THE CHAIR:

Thank you.

Will you remark further? Will you remark
further?

Senator Gerratana.

SENATOR GERRATANA:

Madam President, through you, if there's no

objection, I ask that this item be placed on --

THE CHAIR:

007120
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No, (inaudible) --
SENATOR GERRATANA:

Oh, I'm sorry.

THE CHAIR:

-- that I think the -- I think the Senator asked
for a roll call vote, right --
SENATOR GERRATANA:

Oh, a --

THE CHAIR:

-- away, SO --
SENATOR GERRATANA:

-- roll call vote.
THE CHAIR:

-- if that's okay with you.
SENATOR GERRATANA:

Thank you, Madam President.
THE CHAIR:

(Inaudible.)

Will you remark further?

If not, Mr. Clerk.

THE CLERK:
A roll --

THE CHAIR:

007121
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Will you please open the machine and -- I'm sorry

-- I'1ll open the machine; you call the roll call.
THE CLERK:

Immediate roll call has been ordered in the
Senate. Will all Senators please return to the

Chamber. An immediate roll call has been ordered in

the Senate. Will all Senators please return to the

Chamber.
THE CHAIR:

Senator Prague. Senator Prague?
SENATOR PRAGUE:

(Inaudible.)
THE CHAIR:

Thank you, very much.

If all members hdve voted -- if all members have
voted, the machine will be closed.

And, Mr. Clerk, will you call the tally.
THE CLERK:

The motion is on passage of House Bill 6618, as

amended -- correction —-- in concurrence with the

action in the House.

Total number voting 36
Those voting Yea 36
Those voting Nay 0

007122
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Those absent and not voting 0
THE CHAIR:'
Thank you.

Mr. Clerk, will you call the next bill, please?
THE CLERK:
Calendar --
THE CHAIR:
I'm sorry.
THE CLERK:
-- page 31 --
THE CHAIR:
The bill passeq.
Oops; sorry about that.
THE CLERK:
-- Calendar Number 358, Files numbered 576 and

806, substitute for Senate Bill 1202, AN ACT

CONCERNING THE STATE'S HEALTH CARE WORKFORCE;
Favorable Report of Committees on Public Health,
Appropriations, and Labor and Public Employees.
THE CHAIR:

Senator Gerratana; long time no see.
SENATOR GERRATANA:

Yeah, long time no see; thank you, Madam

President.
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